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VALUES

We are professional, 
honest, fair, and do 

not tolerate crime and 
corruption

Integrity

We are committed to 
building and supporting 

our employees in an 
endeavour to becoming 
an employer of choice

Our People

We are open and 
accountable in our 

interactions with our 
stakeholders and staff

Transparency

We achieve our set 
goals and objectives 

with desired outcomes

Effectiveness

We are dependable, 
trustworthy and value 

our customers

Reliability

We seek to contribute 
towards the greater 

good of our country and 
continent by supporting 
social development and 

economic growth

Social Responsibility

We are innovative 
and passionate about 

performance

Innovation

We are professional 
about how we perform 

our work and about 
how we deal with our 

customers

Professionalism
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Throughout the world transport regulatory regimes 
have been characterised by changes – changes that 
mirror national responses to the economic pressures 
of globalisation as well as local socio-economic growth 
and development needs and priorities.  South Africa’s 
transport sector has not been immune to global and 
local economic pressures.  On the contrary, this sector 
responded to the country’s challenges and pressures by 
contributing to the country’s 2009-2014 Medium Term 
Strategic Framework (MTSF) and longer-term National 
Development Plan (NDP).  The 2009-2014 MTSF focused 
on addressing South Africa’s underlying economic 
challenges - poverty, inequality and unemployment, 
under the umbrella of the NDP in which the association 
between economic growth and an increased supply of 
safe, reliable, affordable and efficient transport has been 
formally acknowledged. 

Changes in transport regulatory regimes have found 
expression in the alteration of rail regulatory regimes 
and landscapes.  South Africa’s responses to its socio-
economic pressures and challenges are echoed in the 
country’s progressive transformations and reformations 
currently underway in its rail sector.  The Railway Safety 
Regulator (RSR) has had to respond accordingly.  The 
2013/14 Financial Year (FY) can thus be best remembered 
as year of change for the RSR – a change that was 

accompanied by opportunities for reflection, growth 
and improvement.  The year not only commemorated 
the inauguration of the Honourable Minister of Transport 
Dipou Peters and new members to RSR’s Board of 
Directors including myself as the Board’s Chairperson, 
but ushered in the RSR’s decentralised regulatory model 
to promote, monitor, enforce and oversee railway safety 
across the width and breadth of the country.  In keeping 
abreast of the country’s investment in railway infrastructure 
and rolling stock to ensure improved access to economic 
opportunities and services, economic development 
and mobility of goods and people, the RSR’s 2013/14 
Strategic Plan reflected a continuous enrichment of ideas 
and improvements in regulatory concepts and initiatives 
to guide the entity in its quest to ensure that rail has a 
positive role to play in sustainably contributing to the 
country’s social and economic development.  
It is reassuring to note that the RSR recognised its role 
and responsibility in contributing to the country’s growth 
and development agenda, as well as that of the Southern 
African Development Community (SADC), by doing 
more than delivering on its mandate in the 2013/14 FY 
despite severe financial and human resource constraints.  
This is shown in the admirable performance score it 
achieved that was set against targets aligned with the 
2009-2014 MTSF, the clean audit report attained for 
the 2013/14 FY, the contributions made to further the 

objectives of the Southern African Railway Association 
(SARA) in Africa and the assistance provided to SADC 
member states with respect to accident investigations, 
knowledge sharing and safety assessments, as well as 
the delivery on key flagship projects and initiatives.  On 
the delivery of key flagship projects and initiatives, the 
RSR should be especially commended for the extensive 
engagement and consultative workshops it hosted with its 
key stakeholders during the development of the revised 
safety permit model.    
  
In the Honourable Deputy Minister of Transport, 
Sindisiwe Chikunga’s address to the RSR during the 
2013/14 FY, the country’s need for managers capable of 
implementing effective management approaches in the 
face of unique challenges was emphasised given the 
importance of service delivery to the goals of the 2009-
2014 MTSF.  The Honourable Minister of Transport’s, 
Dipou Peters reiterated this sentiment in her address to 
the Department of Transport’s entities on 4 June 2014.  
The RSR’s redesign of its performance management 
system, the proactive review it undertook of its regulatory 
framework and approach, and its intention to implement 
a collaborative and integrative business process model 
and management quality system in the 2014/15 FY to 
ensure business excellence, serves as testament to the 
Regulator’s commitment to improved service delivery.  It 

is my expressed opinion that the RSR has done South 
Africa proud by giving expression to the government’s 
objectives and priorities. 

It is with gratitude that I extend my appreciation to the 
Department of Transport for the invaluable leadership 
and support it had provided the RSR in executing a 
number of its flagship initiatives. The RSR employees 
are acknowledged with much pride and reverence 
to their commitment to the shared values of hard work 
and service delivery that both anchors and enables the 
country’s growth and development agenda.

MR M V RATSHIMBILANI
CHAIRPERSON: BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
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Reflecting on the achievements the Railway Safety 
Regulator (RSR) celebrated in the 2013/14 Financial Year 
(FY), as well as its challenges and non-achievements, 
what has become apparent is the Entity’s ability to 
transform from a responsive organisation to that of an 
adaptive enterprise - one that is capable of self-conscious 
introspection and learning.  It is our ability to learn as an 
organisation that assisted us in addressing the institutional 
challenges we experienced in the 2013/14 FY as well as 
to operate effectively under severe financial constraints.  
This ability enabled the RSR to draw on its deepest and 
most comprehensive understanding of how things work 
to assist the organisation in finding the most appropriate 
responses to the challenges it encountered during the 
period under review thereby enabling the organisation 
to not only accomplish an above-average institutional 
performance score but also to deliver a succession of 
flagship initiatives.

The RSR’s strategic direction for the 2013/14 FY was 
aligned to the Government’s long, medium and short-
term National Strategic Priority areas for the 2009/2010 
– 2013/14 FYs.  Thus, in addition to taking into account 

the organisation’s legislative and supporting mandate, 
past safety performance reviews and key business 
activities to develop the 2013/14 FY strategic framework, 
the RSR considered the national long-term growth and 
development priorities along with the Department of 
Transport’s (DoT) 2013/14 FY strategic focus.  

This culminated in the derivation and formulation of the 
following strategic objectives:
• To maintain sustainable institutional effectiveness; 
• To facilitate and enforce an effective regulatory 

framework; and
• To promote alignment of railways in South Africa and 

the SADC region.

The RSR inaugurated the 2013/14 FY with the 
implementation of a decentralised organisational 
structure to provide an enabling institutional framework to 
facilitate and enforce an effective regulatory framework 
and approach.  The primary aim of this structure was to 
increase the entity’s regional visibility, its response times 
to investigate occurrences and to enforce its mandate 
across the width and breadth of the country.  Although 

the Durban and Cape Town regional offices 
were in full operation by the end of the 
2013/14 FY and the number of audits and 
inspections conducted for the year under 
review increased slightly, the regional 
offices were insufficiently capacitated due 
to financial constraints hence could not 
perform optimally. This was as a result 
of a reduction in funds midyear by the 
Shareholder.

NKULULEKO POYA
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER



18 19RSR Annual Report 2013 / 2014 RSR Annual Report 2013 / 2014

1. KEY ACHIEVEMENTS

1.1 MAINTAINING INSTITUTIONAL 
EFFECTIVENESS 

1.1.1 Integrating Business Processes – The National 
Information Monitoring System (NIMS)

Since the promolgation of the Act, the need for a 
National Information Monitoring System (NIMS) to 
generate appropriate and effective information to enable 
safety performance to be monitored and measured, for 
benchmarking purposes, to retain institutional memory, 
and for use as a tool for decision making by both the RSR 
and the railway industry was recognised.  Subsequent 
to the Department of Transport approving the proposal 
for the design and development of a NIMS, the RSR 
embarked on an intense process of developing the 
system in consultation with the provider in the 2013/14 
FY.  The system will facilitate the reporting of incidents 
and occurrences, provide an internal data warehouse 
for both internal and external information, and facilitate 
an efficient flow of information in all functional areas of 
the RSR as per the National Railway Safety Regulator 
Act, No. 16 of 2002 (as amended), hereafter referred 
to as the NRSR Act.  The project will span a period 
of three years and provide the RSR with the basic 
infrastructure required to work towards achieving its 
vision of creating a safe railway environment.  The 
phased-in implementation of NIMS will commence in 
the 2014/15 FY with the automation of the safety permit 
administration system. 

1.1.2 Revised Safety Permit Fee Model 

For the RSR to effectively address its current and future 
regulatory demands and challenges as well as put into 
place mechanisms to proactively mitigate identified 
risks in the railway landscape, it requires a sustainable 
source of income.  The entity presently derives the 
bulk of its revenue by administering safety permit fees.  
Given the ever-diminishing government Grant, the RSR 
has been left with few alternatives other than to increase 
railway operators’ safety permit levies over the years to 
remain viable.  Based on weaknesses identified in the 
previous Cost/Maintenance-Based Permit Fee Model as 
well as complaints from operators, the DoT issued the 
RSR with a directive to revise the Model and produce 
one with a greater predictive capability with regards to 
operator safety permit levies.  Guided by this directive, 
the value proposition governing the development of the 
revised permit fee model was premised on the following 
objectives: predictability, equity, and affordability.  In 
addition, the Model needs to be based on sound scientific 
principles and verifiable data, and to ensure that the 
generation of revenue is sufficient for the organisation’s 
sustainability.  Informed by an extensive benchmarking 
exercise and industry best practices, the permit fee 
model review process yielded three model alternatives 
with operators preferring the Mixed Revenue and Activity 

& Rate-adjusted based approach to modelling permit 
fee levies. This followed an extensive countrywide 
consultative process and model selection survey.  

The Mixed Revenue and Activity & Rate-adjusted based 
Permit Fee Model was officially implemented on 28 May 
2014, following the publication of the final Permit Fee 
Notice for the 2014/15 FY in the Government Gazette.  
The implementation of an automated revised Permit 
Fee Model includes a Change Management initiative to 
assist operators in seamlessly transitioning from the old 
to the new system.

1.1.3 Performance Management 

In line with the South Africa’s Policy Framework for the 
Government-Wide Monitoring and Evaluation System 
(GWMES) and to overcome the limitations inherent in 
the RSR’s current approach to strategic planning and 
design, the RSR designed and developed a Results-
Based Management (RBM) system during the 2nd and 
3rd Quarter of the 2013/14 FY for implementation in the 
2014/15 FY. The framework for RBM is reflected in the 
2014/15 Strategic Plan and Annual Performance Plan 
(APP) that was finalised and adopted by the Board in 
the 4th Quarter. The 2014/15 Strategic Plan and APP not 
only articulates the organisation’s intended impact in the 
rail environment but also the outcomes and concomitant 
outputs to achieve its strategic purpose i.e. to impact 
significantly on railway safety by focusing explicitly on 
reducing operational occurrences. This RBM system 
also made explicit provision for organisational reflection, 
learning and accountability. It therefore not only provided 
the RSR with a framework for implementing results-
based performance monitoring and evaluation (M&E) 
systems and to integrate performance M&E with the 
360 Degree employee performance evaluation method, 
but to also put into place a solid foundation on which to 
build a cross-cutting and inter-disciplinary knowledge 
management system once key knowledge enablers and 
the requisite supporting processes and mechanisms 
have been identified put into place.

1.1.4 Institutional Stability 

The historical role of Human Resources Management 
(HRM) has evolved dramatically over the years from 
that of the traditional transactional workplace role to 
that of ensuring institutional stability, collaboration and 
integration.  To keep abreast with developments in the 
field in order to cultivate a climate of institutional stability, 
the 2013/14 FY witnessed the initial stages of the RSR’s 
HR Department’s adoption of a client-centred service 
business model in which HR personnel/practitioners 
will be in a position to extend their services to that of 
advising, coaching, consulting and serving through 
partnering closely with the RSR’s personnel.  Policy 
development, in this context, serves as one of the key 
indicators of institutional stability.  In the 2013/14 FY, 
seven HR related policies were produced and adopted 
by the RSR’s Board. 

Annual staff turnover serves as another key institutional stability 
indicator.  The RSR managed to reduce the staff turnover from 
11% in the 2011/12FY to 4% and 5% in the respective 2012/13 
and 2013/14 FYs.  In addition, the 5% turnover recorded for the 
2013/14 FY is well below than the limit of 10% that is utilised to 
signify concerns within the workforce.         

Last, but not least, the RSR concluded the 2013/14 FY 
with a financially unqualified audit, aptly demonstrating its 
achievement of the sub-objective to maintain institutional 
accountability and financial stability. 

1.2 FACILITATING AND ENFORCING AN 
EFFECTIVE REGULATORY FRAMEWORK

1.2.1 Implementation of the Penalty Regulation

The revised Penalty Regulation was approved by the Minister on 
7 March 2013 and implemented in the 2013/14 FY.  To date, 36 
operators have been issued with penalties for non-compliance. 

1.2.2 Boards of Inquiry (BOI)

Two BOI’s were conducted in the first quarter of the 2013/14 
financial year: The Cor Delfos-Kalafong train collision on 31 
January 2013 and the Hectorspruit Level Crossing collision on 
13 July 2012.   The former collision resulted in serious injuries to 
approximately 300 passengers.  The Hectorspruit level crossing 
resulted in 25 fatalities and 20 injuries.  Both BOI reports were 
produced at the end of the first quarter and approved by the 
Board.

1.2.3 Development of Safety Standards

The following Standards were developed during the 2013/14 
FY:
• Inter-operability, Interface and Intra-face Management 

Standard; 
• Railway Stations Standard.  
The following Standards were reviewed during the year under 
review:
• Railway Safety Management Standard:  General;
• Technical Requirements for Engineering and Operational 

Standard:  Electrical;
• Technical Requirements for Engineering and Operational 

Standards:  Track and Civil Infrastructure; 
• Technical Requirements for Engineering and Operational 

Standards:  Rolling Stock. 

1.2.4 Safety Audits, Inspections and Investigations 

During the year under review, the RSR exceeded its target of 
68 Audits. Two Additional Safety Audits were conducted as a 
result of requests received from Operators.  RSR also exceeded 
its target of completing 20 Investigations by completing 
10 additional Investigations. The additional completed 
investigations were undertaken as they were within proximity 
of the initial planned incident investigations. The work was 
carried out to capture economies of scale in travel costs and 
time under a reduced budget. 
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1.2.5 Safety Education and Awareness 
Campaigns

The RSR conducted a number of awareness 
campaigns during the 2013/14 FY most of which 
were accompanied by satisfaction surveys.  
Highlights from the awareness campaigns 
conducted were: the Level Crossing awareness 
campaign held in Koelenhof in Cape Town (where 
the highest number of level crossing incidents in 
the Western Cape were reported); and the safety 
awareness campaigns held in Noupoort and 
Daveyton (Gauteng) during Transport Month in 
October 2013.  The RSR handed over a re-modelled 
Science lab to the Noupoort Combined School to 
encourage student participation and interest in 
physical sciences.  The awareness campaign that 
took place in Daveyton addressed issues of safety 
and clarified the role and mandate of the RSR with 
respect to railway safety.

1.2.6 Improved Communication Systems 

The RSR investigated more than 10 train-on-
train collisions in the last five years.  Most of 
these collisions involved Passenger Rail Agency 
of South Africa (PRASA) commuter trains that 
resulted in injury to train crew, passengers and 
damage to rolling stock and infrastructure.  RSR 
investigations into these occurrences highlighted 
safety concerns with operating procedures, Human 
Factors issues with the train crew, staff shortage, 
rolling stock and infrastructure maintenance, and 
train communication issues.  A primary outcome 
of these investigations resulted in the formal 
modification of the following procedure during 
the 2013/14 FY: the T-Signalling procedure which 
allowed drivers to pass a signal without authority 
from a Train Control Officer (TCO) and the use of 
cell phones as a primary mode of communication 
during train operations were removed.  By virtue of 
its investigations, the RSR instructed a change to 
trunk radios as a primary mode of communication 
between TCOs and drivers.  

1.2.7 Technology Management

RSR has a duty to ensure that New Works 
undertaken by the industry and technological 
changes are introduced into the railway systems 
in a safe manner.  To this end, technology reviews 
have been conducted on a number of projects that 
ranged in complexity from simple siding extension 
project types to more involved ones requiring 
designs and implementation of major railway 
systems: signalling, rolling stock and perway. The 
fundamental objective of undertaking these reviews 
is to ensure that the intended operator safety 
management system (SMS) changes comply with 
applicable standards and that operators identify 
the safety risks associated with the intended action 
and propose appropriate mitigating actions.

During the 2013/14 FY, the RSR played an oversight role in 
PRASA’s modernisation programmes with specific attention 
being given to the re-signalling and rolling stock depot 
modernisation projects in the three large metropolitan 
areas of Gauteng, Cape Town and Durban.

The RSR also played an oversight role in the TFR’s Market 
Demand Demand Strategy (MDS) rail projects. These 
included the upgrading of the existing network, the 
building of new lines, infrastructure upgrades and rolling 
stock acquisition.

In addition, oversight was provided in the development and 
commissioning of the country’s first level crossings to be 
fitted with road traffic lights (robots). The two installations that 
are currently operational were fitted with barriers spanning 
the entire width of the road and road blocking devices that 
prevents inadvertent access onto the railway line.

1.2.8 Strategy to Regulate Suppliers of Safety Critical 
Systems, Components and Services

The railway industry landscape in South Africa is being 
progressively transformed into a world class, efficient, 
modern and transport system designed to adequately meet 
the expectations of the commuting public and to meet the 
dynamic freight demands of the national and international 
markets.  Coupled with this transformation and growth is 
the congruent development in the industries that provide 
support to the core rail industry.  Existing railway suppliers 
are seeing unprecedented demands in services and 
there are also new role players in the industry supported 
by the socioeconomic imperatives driven by the national 
government. 

Numerous stakeholders influence the level of safety in 
any rail operation. These include, among others, the 
government; regulators; rail users; original equipment 
manufacturers; component suppliers; infrastructure/rolling 
stock maintainers; financiers; etc.  The impact of suppliers 
of safety critical systems, components and services 
is therefore of paramount importance in the overall 
performance of railway safety.

Best safety practices dictate that the risks imposed by 
suppliers of safety critical systems and services are 
identified and managed. Presently, the South African rail 
environment lacks the capacity in this area of independent 
conformance assessment to provide core railway operators 
and the public with a level of assurance that the services 
sought form the suppliers will not compromise safety. 
Thus, with safety assurance being of paramount importance 
to the RSR, the 2013/14 Financial Year focussed on the 
development of a regulatory arrangement that is able to 
recognise the capability and competence of suppliers of 
safety critical systems and services in the rail environment 
in the form of a strategy.  The purpose of this strategy is 
to present an approach to be implemented by the RSR 
to address systematic safety risks emanating from the 
suppliers of safety critical services in the rail industry.

1.3 PROMOTING THE ALIGNMENT OF 
RAILWAYS IN SOUTH AFRICA AND THE 
SADC REGION

The RSR is a member of the Southern African Railway 
Association (SARA) Executive Committee (EXCO) and SARA 
Board.  SARA Board and EXCO participation assists the RSR 
in its oversight capacity to harmonise railway safety in the 
Southern African Development Community (SADC) region.  
To this end the RSR’s Safety Management System (as per the 
SANS 3000 series) was adopted as the SARA Safety Policy 
for application by all SADC Railways.  

The RSR also participated in various initiatives in SARA 
in the form of Corridor Interface Support programmes.  
The 2013/14 FY saw the RSR develop and submit a Train 
Operations Management Standard to SARA and participate 
in Infrastructure Technical Committee meetings to harmonize 
and share its technical and subject matter expertise with 
SARA members.

1.3.1 Accident Investigations

The RSR assisted TransNamib Holdings Ltd (TNHL) in 
conducting BOI investigations in the derailment of its freight 
train in the Corridor line between Kranzberg and Tsumeb in 
2013/14.  This line contributes to 80% of TNHL’s total revenue.  
The BOIs recommended an upgrade of the line to allow for 
increases in train speeds up to 50Km/h.  

1.3.2 Goba Corridor  - Level Crossing Assessment
 
This is a new railway line project undertaken by Swaziland 
Railways (SR) in conjunction with TFR and CFM (Mozambique 
Railways).  In this project, the old line must be upgraded to link 
with the new Line of 22t/axle.  The implication of the upgrade is 
likely to result in problems on CFM’s side on Goba Corridor due 
to the need for a bridge.  The RSR contributed to this project 
by participating in the Level Crossing Risk Assessment in the 
Goba Corridor.  The outcome of the assessment assisted CFM 
in deciding on the construction of a new bridge instead of 
repairing the existing one.
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1.3.3 Harmonization of SARA Dangerous Goods Hand Book

The RSR thus developed a handbook for guiding SADC Railways 
and the handling and transportation of Dangerous Goods by rail.  A 
technical training on the transportation of Dangerous Goods workshop 
was held with SARA members on 10th – 11th March 2014.  The 
workshop concluded with a request to RSR to visit individual Railway 
Administrations under SARA for training on transporting Dangerous 
Goods.  

1.3.4 Training in the Human Factors Management Standard

The RSR developed a SARA 003 Human Factors Management Standard 
that forms the basis of guiding compliance with the proposed SARA 
Training concept.  Training is premised on the fact that development of 
human resources is critical for interoperability.  

1.3.5 Co-Operative Agreements

Section 6 of the NRSRA read in conjunction with Chapter 3 of the 
Constitution of South Africa requires the RSR to conclude co-operative 
agreements (CA’s) or arrangements with every relevant organ of state 
that has a mutual interest or concurrent jurisdiction with the RSR. The 
RSR’s areas of concerns and interest lies in the areas that impact or 
have the potential to impact on operational safety.  The RSR managed 
to implement eleven Agreements and concluded three Agreements 
with the following organisations in the 2013/14 FY:
• Chemical and Allied Industries’ Association (CAIA);
• Department of Cooperative Governance (COGTA);
• Department of Environmental Affairs (DEA);
• Department of Mineral Resources (DMR);
• Department of Labour (DOL);
• Heritage Railway Association of Southern Africa (HRASA);
• National Nuclear Regulator (NNR);
• Rail-Road Association of South Africa (RRA);
• Road Traffic Management Corporation (RTMC);
• South African Bureau of Standards (SABS);
• South African Police Service (SAPS); and
• Transport Education and Training Authority (TETA).

2. CHALLENGES

2.1 IMPACTS OF FINANCIAL 
CONSTRAINTS 

The directive to reduce railway operators safety permit 
levies for the 2013/14 FY by the DoT, which resulted in a 
R5 million deficit in the RSR’s projected budget, exerted 
tremendous pressure on the RSR’s operations as some 
of the key performance activities had to be deferred to 
the 2014/15 FY due to the lack of adequate funding. 
As a direct consequence thereof, the following targets 
could not be achieved: The 2013/14 Annual Railway 
Safety Conference; the establishment of a Call Centre; 
the development of a High Speed Rail Standard; and 
the development of four Regulations.  The RSR’s human 
resource constraints, brought on by a lack of adequate 
funding, also resulted in the non-implementation of the 
RSR’s Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment 
(BBBEE) Strategy.

In addition to some of the 2013/14 FY’s key target areas not 
being met, another key challenge the RSR experienced 
was the filling of vacant critical posts especially in the 
Durban and Cape Town regions.  Insufficient funding 
resulted in the RSR not achieving its goal of implementing 
its mandate in full across the width and breadth of the 
country.  

2.2 ICT SUPPORT CHALLENGES

The RSR’s staff complement to manage the development 
and implementation of its two critically important large-
scale ICT projects – NIMS and the Electronic Document 
Management System (EDMS) – as well as to provide 
internal support services in the 2013/14 FY was found to 
be cripplingly insufficient.  With ICT providing an enabling 
environment for facilitating communication within the 
RSR and between the RSR and its stakeholders, as 
well as integrating the organisation’s various business 
processes, it is essential that this support service 
operates optimally.  Inefficiencies in the functioning of 
this service may have damaging rippling and snowball 
effects on the RSR’s ability to perform.  Thus, despite 
the best of intentions with regards to the design and 
implementation of ‘state-of-the-art’ business practices 
and operating models, without proper ICT support, the 
RSR will not be able to deliver on its mandate.

The 2013/14 FY witnessed the RSR being plagued with 
ICT security breaches, limited network and email support 
as well as inadequate regional support. These challenges 
compounded those the Regulator experienced with 
regards to its financial and human resource capacity 
constraints. 

3. INTERVENTIONS IN 2014 
AND BEYOND

3.1 SERVICE DELIVERY 
(PERFORMANCE) EXCELLENCE 
MODEL/PROGRAMME 

The RSR will be implementing a Service Delivery 
Excellence Programme and its Service Delivery 
(Assessment) Index Tool, based on the ISO 9000 quality 
management principles i.e. ISO 9004, in the 2014/15 FY 
to improve performance excellence in the organisation.  
This International Standard provides a wider focus on 
quality management than ISO 9001 as it will address the 
needs and expectations of all the RSR’s stakeholders 
and will also provide guidance for the systematic and 
continual improvement of the organisation’s overall 
performance.  It promotes self-assessment as a tool for 
the review of the maturity level of the RSR, covering its 
leadership, strategy, management system, resources 
(i.e. capitals) and business processes, to identify areas 
of strength and weaknesses and opportunities for either 
improvements, or innovations, or both. 
 
The overall aim of implementing this management 
system in the RSR is to improve the quality of the 
organisation’s key business process management, the 
level of service delivery (i.e. the quality of the outputs) 
and client satisfaction, with the aid of the recognised 
management methodology of Planning, Doing, Checking 
(monitoring and evaluating) and taking Corrective Action 
(P-D-C-A) with reference to all the functions, activities 
and processes in the RSR.

3.2 CERTIFICATION OF SAFETY 
CRITICAL GRADES

An analysis of the RSR’s Annual State of Safety reports 
for the past 5 years highlighted that one of the principle 
contributory factors to Railway Occurrences was the lack 
of the sufficient, competent, or both of Safety Related 
and Safety Critical grades among railway operators. 

To ensure the creation and operation of an appropriate 
regulatory regime for the licensing or certification (or 
both) of Safety Related and Safety Critical grades to 
systematically improve the safety of Railway Operations, 
the proposed regulatory instrument will recognise and 
leverage off the requirements of relevant national and 
international legislation, standards and best practice 
including, but not limited to: 
o The National Rail Safety Regulator Act 
o Occupational Health and Safety Act 
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o Engineering Professions Act 
o SANS 3000-1 Railway Safety Management 
o SANS 3000-4 Human Factors Management
o Directive 2007/59/EC of the European Union – licensing of train 

drivers 
o Federal Railroad Administration, part 240 - qualification and 

certification of locomotive engineers
o National Skills Development Act (TETA and SAQA)
o South African National Accreditation System (SANAS) 
o The Accreditation for Conformity Assessment, Calibration and 

Good Laboratory Practice Act. 

3.3 PHASE 2 OF THE NATIONAL 
INFORMATION MONITORING SYSTEM

Phase 2 of NIMS will commence during the 2014/15 FY where the 
revised automated Safety Permit application process will be rolled out 
to the industry for use.  The following modules will be developed for 
NIMS:
• Occurrence Management Module
• Audit and Inspection Management Module
• Compliance and Enforcement Module

3.4 REGULATORY REVIEW

The review of the RSR’s Regulatory Approach in the 2013/14 financial 
year yielded quite a few substantial recommendations, one of which 
was for the organisation to undertake a Regulatory Impact Assessment/
Analysis (RIA). This recommendation served as an overarching 
recommendation to evaluate the impact of the RSR’s compliance-
based regulatory approach on railway safety. RIAs have demonstrated 
improvements in the efficiency and effectiveness of governments by 
ensuring that the benefits of regulatory tools justify the costs. The use 
of compliance and enforcement regulatory instruments will be carefully 
considered in the RIA, as they are crucial in determining the real 
impacts of the RSR’s current approach to regulating railway safety.

As part of the broader review project, the proposed RIA to be undertaken 
in the 2014/15 FY will be preceded, and informed, by a gap analysis 
of the NRSR Act to ensure that both existing regulations and proposed 
amendments to the Act will improve the quality of the RSR’s regulatory 
approach. The outcomes of the gap analysis and subsequent RIA will 
contribute to the formulation of new regulations and future strategic 
safety programmes.

In cultivating a safety regulatory environment where experimentation, 
learning, reflection, collaboration and integrative thinking are actively 
and consciously encouraged, I have no doubt that the RSR’s journey in 
transforming into an agile enterprise capable of adaptive, progressive 
and proactive action in the context of railway safety will leave an 
indelible quality imprint on the railway landscape.  I would like to use 
this opportunity to express my gratitude to all the RSR’s employees and 
stakeholders for their continued commitment to improving railway safety 
both locally and in the wider SADC region.  It is inspiring to note that our 
staff, our operators, Board of Directors and shareholder collectively value 
the role that railway safety plays in contributing to the country’s growth 
and development agenda.  On this note, I salute each employee for their 
teamwork and the added value they bring to work each day to make our 
railways as safe as possible.
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Despite having operated in an environment characterised 
by severe resource constraints, significant strides were 
made by the RSR towards the creation of a safe railway 
environment.  Many institutional strengthening initiatives 
that were designed were put into action and the RSR 
managed to achieve most of stated targets for the 
2013/14 FY.  Lessons learnt from previous FY’s were 
factored in the development of 2014/15-2018/18 Medium 
Term Strategic Framework to guide and direct the RSR 
and to ensure that the role of the RSR in addressing 
operational occurrences is given priority status.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank each and 
every employee for their excellent performance.  It is 
heartening that our people see the RSR not just as an 
institution, but as a place where all of us have a stake 
in the success of the RSR. I salute each employee and 
the Board of Directors, for their teamwork and the added 
value they bring to work each day to make our railways 
as safe as possible.
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During the year under review the RSR adopted a number of policies and procedures aimed at ensuring that the 
Human Resources environment is conducive to the attraction and retention of critical skills for the RSR to deliver on 
its mandate.  During the year under review the Board of Directors reviewed and approved a number of key provisions 
of the Conditions of Service.

Based on a comparative analysis of the turnover rates for 2012/13 and 2013/14 it is worth noting that the organisation 
has managed to reduce staff turnover to 4% and 5% respectively.  This indicates a significant drop from the 2011/12 
financial year’s turnover of 11 %.

The following sections provide an overview of the Human Resources key indicators for the 2013/14 financial year.

1. HUMAN RESOURCES POLICY DEVELOPMENT

The following internally developed and reviewed Human Resources policies were finalized and 
approved by the Board of Directors during the 2013/2014 financial year. 
1.1 Sexual Harassment Policy
1.2 Probation Policy and Guidelines
1.3 Disciplinary Code and Procedure
1.4 Internship and Learnership Training Policy
1.5 Job Evaluation Policy
1.6 Leave Policy and Procedure Guidelines
1.7 Resettlement Guidelines

2. EMPLOYMENT EQUITY PROFILE
 FOR THE PERIOD 1 APRIL 2013 – 31 MARCH 2014 

The table below depicts the profile of the organisation based on employment category, race and gender.

OCCUPATIONAL 
CATEGORIES

MALE 
AFRICAN

MALE 
COLOURD

MALE 
INDIAN

MALE 
WHITE

TOTAL 
MALES

FEMALE 
AFRICAN

FEMALE 
COLOURD

FEMALE 
INDIAN

FEMALE 
WHITE

TOTAL 
FEMALE TOTAL

Senior  Management
(CEO, General & Senior 
Managers)
Levels 13 – 16

10 0 0 0 10 3 0 1 2 6 16

Middle Management
(Managers, Assistant 
Managers)
Levels 9 – 12

7 0 1 1 9 8 2 0 1 11 20

Professional
(Levels 10a – 10c) 13 1 0 5 19 6 0 0 0 6 25

Administrative Staff
(Levels 6 – 8) 9 0 0 0 9 14 2 0 0 16 25

General Assistants
(Levels 3 – 5) 3 0 0 0 3 5 0 0 0 5 8

People with Disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 42 1 1 6 50 36 4 1 3 44 94

3. HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

3.1 Recruitment for the Period 1 April 2013 - 31 March 2014 
OCCUPATIONAL 

CATEGORIES
MALE 

AFRICAN
MALE 

COLOURD
MALE 

INDIAN
MALE 
WHITE

TOTAL 
MALES

FEMALE 
AFRICAN

FEMALE 
COLOURD

FEMALE 
INDIAN

FEMALE 
WHITE

TOTAL 
FEMALE TOTAL

Executive Management
(CEO, General Managers)
Levels 14 – 16

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management
Level   13 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Management
(Managers, Assistant 
Managers)
Levels 9 – 12

0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 1

Professional
(Levels 10a – 10c) 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 2

Administrative Staff
(Levels 6 – 8) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

General Assistants
(Levels 3 – 5) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

People with Disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 3 3

3.2 Skills Development for the Period of 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

OCCUPATIONAL
CATEGORIES 

MALE FEMALE 
TOTAL

AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE 

Executive Management 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 3

Senior Management 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 1 3

Management 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Professionals 5 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 7

General Assistant 1 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 4

Elementary 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2

People with Disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

3.3 Summary of all Human Resource Development Interventions
The primary aim of Human Resource interventions is to assist the organization to achieve its purpose by adding 
value to its key resources and its employees. This means investing in people through training and development to 
enable them to perform better and empower them to make the best use of their natural abilities. The following HRD 
interventions were implemented during the financial year under review.

Training Interventions
TRAINING INTERVENTIONS IMPLEMENTED 

Wheel Rail Interaction

Multi-Disciplinary Concepts in Railway Engineering

Application ARP Course

Fixed Assets Management 

Ms Access 

Writing a National Standard

Risk Management

Basic Handyman Skills

Pastel Evolution Training

Corporate Social Investment and Stakeholder Engagement

Building a Professional Future for Health and Safety

Basic interpretations of theory
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3.4 BURSARIES 
A total of Four (4) bursaries were awarded to employees who wish to further their studies and acquire nationally 
recognized qualifications.

3.5 INTERNSHIP PROGRAMME 
A total number of three (3) interns were recruited during the 2013/2014 financial year. It is to be noted that after serving 
the full twelve (12) month Internship, all three (3) Interns have now been absorbed to be developed as Junior Railway 
Safety Inspectors over a two (2) year period. This scheme will serve as an incubator for the further development of 
engineering graduates as future railway safety inspectors.

DEPARTMENT NUMBER OF INTERNS RECRUITED 

Operations ( Inspectorate) 2 Females

Investigations 1 Male

TOTAL 3

4. LEAVE TABLES

The tables below depict the utilisation of annual, sick, family responsibility, maternity and study leave for the period 
under review:

4.1 ANNUAL LEAVE APRIL 2013 – MARCH 2014 
The table below depicts the utilization of leave by RSR employees. As part of the process to monitor absenteeism 
levels within the organization, all employees are required submit annual leave plans to the HR Unit. This planning 
process will assist in controlling the utilization of leave within the organization.
OCCUPATIONAL CATEGORY TOTAL DAYS TAKEN AVERAGE DAYS TAKEN PER EMPLOYEE EMPLOYMENT 

Senior  Management                                                 240 13.3 18

Middle Management 327.50 15.6 21

Professionals 246 9.8 25

Administrative Staff 421 15.6 27

Elementary Occupation 264 12.6 21

TOTAL 1498.50 13.3 112

4.2 LEAVE PAYOUTS FOR PERIOD, 1 APRIL – 31 MARCH 2014

REASON TOTAL AMOUNT R NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AVERAGE PAYMENT PER EMPLOYEE

Leave payout for Termination of service                                                 133 748.25 5 26 749.65

TOTAL       133 748.25 5 26 749.65

4.3 SICK LEAVE APRIL 2013– MARCH 2014

SALARY BAND TOTAL DAYS NO. OF 
EMPLOYEES

% TOTAL EMPLOYEES 
USING SICK LEAVE

AVERAGE DAYS PER 
EMPLOYEE

TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 
USING SICK LEAVE

Senior Management 91 18 56% 9.1 10

Middle Management 99 21 86% 5.5 18

Professionals 53 25 48% 4.4 12

Administrative Staff 154 27 89% 6.4 24

Elementary Occupation 40 21 43% 4.4 9

TOTAL 437 112 65% 6 73

4.4. FAMILY RESPONSIBILITY LEAVE APRIL 2013 – MARCH 2014

OCCUPATIONAL CATEGORY TOTAL DAYS TAKEN AVERAGE PER EMPLOYEE EMPLOYMENT

Senior  Management 2 0.1 18

Middle Management 11 0.5 21

Professionals 9 0.4 25

Administrative Staff 16 0.6 27

Elementary Occupation 6 0.3 21

TOTAL 44 0.4 112

4.5 PATERNITY LEAVE  APRIL 2013 – MARCH 2014  
OCCUPATIONAL CATEGORY TOTAL DAYS TAKEN AVERAGE PER EMPLOYEE EMPLOYMENT

Senior  Management 3 0.2 18

Middle Management 16 0.8 21

Professionals 3 0.1 25

Administrative Staff 0 0 27

Elementary Occupation 0 0 21

TOTAL 22 0.2 112
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4.6 MATERNITY LEAVE  APRIL 2013 – MARCH 2014  

OCCUPATIONAL CATEGORY TOTAL DAYS TAKEN AVERAGE PER EMPLOYEE EMPLOYMENT

Senior  Management 0 0 18

Middle Management 241 11.5 21

Professionals 0 0 25

Administrative Staff 0 0 27

Elementary Occupation 0 0 21

TOTAL 241 2 112

4.7 ADOPTION  LEAVE  APRIL 2013 – MARCH 2014 

OCCUPATIONAL CATEGORY TOTAL DAYS TAKEN AVERAGE PER EMPLOYEE EMPLOYMENT

Senior  Management 55 3 18

Middle Management 0 0 21

Professionals 0 0 25

Administrative Staff 0 0 27

Elementary Occupation 0 0 21

TOTAL 55 0.5 112

5. INJURY ON DUTY

The following table provides basic information on injury on duty.
NATURE OF INJURY ON DUTY NUMBER % OF TOTAL

Required basic Medical attention only 0 0

Temporary total disablement 3 100%

Permanent disablement 0 0

Fatal 0 0

TOTAL 3 100%
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BOARD MEETINGS

The following table depicts RSR Board Meetings which took place for the period under review. Four Board meetings 
were planned as well as special meetings, which are listed below:

NAME
13 April 2013

(Special)
25 April 

2013
30 May 2013

(Special)
30 July 
2013

06 August 2013
(Special)

03 October 2013 
(Special)

05 December 
2013

Brenda Madumise P P P P P P -

Matodzi Ratshimbilani A P A P P A P

Chris de Vos P P P P P P -

Jane Barrett P P P P P P A

Mala Somaru P P P P P P P

May Hermanus P P P P P A -

Willem Venter A A A P A P P

Thobile Lamati A P P P A P P

Sharon Chauke P P P A P A -

Wahed Rasool A P P A P P -

Thembi Msibi P P A P P P P

Mitesh Patel P P A A P A A

Nkululeko Poya A P P P P P P

Andre Harrison N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A P

Masaccha Mbonambi N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A P

Harry Masindi N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A P

Norman Baloyi N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A P

Natalie Skeepers N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A P

Other Board Activities

NAME 13 March 2013 (Board Induction) 29 January 2014 )Strategic Planning Workshop)

Matodzi Ratshimbilani P P

Jane Barrett P P

Mala Somaru P P

Willem Venter P P

Thobile Lamati P P

Mitesh Patel P P

Nkululeko Poya P P

Andre Harrison P P

Masaccha Mbonambi P P

Harry Masindi P P

Norman Baloyi P P

Natalie Skeepers P P

Mitesh Patel A A

Legend:  P = Present, A = Apology

The Railway Safety Regulator, herein referred to as the RSR, is governed by the Board of Directors appointed 
through the National Railway Safety Regulator Act 16 of 2002 (“the Act”) as amended and reports to the Minister of 
Transport. The Board of Directors provides strategic guidance to achieve the safety mandate with which the RSR is 
entrusted and provides a framework for improving the corporate governance of the RSR as prescribed in the Act.

Contained in this corporate report, are the activities of the Board and those of the RSR as a whole.  It reflects 
the corporate governance performance in respect of its conduct both in terms of processes as they relate to 
board meetings and committees, as well as the conduct of the RSR in pursuing its legislative role, mandate and 
obligations.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The RSR is committed to good governance and practises ethical standards in discharging its mandate through its 
Board of Directors. The Board is appointed by the Minister of Transport in terms of the National Railway Safety Regulator 
Act of 2002 as amended. All of the non-executive directors are independent, and are expected to contribute an 
unfettered and independent view on matters considered by the Board. They have significant influence in deliberations 
at meetings and bring a wide range of experience and professional skills to the Board. They are required to execute 
their duties properly and to participate actively in the proceedings at Board meetings.

Board meetings are scheduled annually in advance. Special meetings are convened as and when required to address 
specific issues.

The Board is responsible for monitoring RSR management in the implementation of Board-approved plans and 
strategies. The information needs of the directors are considered on a regular basis and directors are given unrestricted 
access to company information, records, documents and property. 

It is also important to note that the CEO is an ex-officio member of the Board. The Board is guided by its governance 
tools, which are the Board and Committee Charters, in executing its mandate. During the year under review, the Board 
reviewed and approved the governance tools to ensure that they are in line with King III and best practices in terms 
of good corporate governance.

NAME APPOINTMENT DATE * Term of office expired 
   on 31 October 2013Brenda Madumise* 01 October 2010 

Matodzi Ratshimbilani 01 October 2010 

Chris de Vos* 01 October 2010 

Jane Barrett 01 October 2010 

Mala Somaru 01 October 2010 

May Hermanus* 01 October 2010 

Willem Venter 01 October 2010 

Thobile Lamati 01 October 2010 

Sharon Chauke* 01 October 2010 

Wahed Rasool* 01 October 2010 

Thembi Msibi 01 October 2010 

Mitesh Patel 01 March 2012 (as a replacement)

Harry Masindi 01 November 2013

Norman Baloyi 01 November 2013

Masaccha Mbonambi 01 November 2013

Natalie Skeepers 01 November 2013

EX OFFICIO MEMBER

Nkululeko Poya Appointed as CEO in October 2011
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established its Committees with various performance functions to assist in the execution of its 
responsibilities. 

The reports and recommendations of the committees to the Board ensure transparency and full disclosure of committee 
and business related activities. Each committee operates within terms of reference that set out the composition, role, 
responsibilities, delegated authority and the requirements for convening meetings.

Committee meeting agendas, papers and minutes are made available to all members of the Board on request. Sub-
committees may also be formed on an ad hoc basis to deal with specific matter.

There are four Committees and the Board oversees the RSR through these Committees. The Committees provide an 
efficient and proactive space for the processing of information before Board meetings. Of critical importance is the 
fact that all Committees have enhanced their performance to optimal levels and that the available human resources in 
terms of Board members were utilised effectively and efficiently during the year under review.

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

MEMBERS 15 April 2013 17 May 2013 18 July 2013 22 October 2013 30 January 2014

Mmathebe  Moja (Chairperson-Independent) P P P P P

Tshepo  Mofokeng (member-Independent) P P P A A

Thobile Lamati P P P A P

Thembi Msibi A A P P A

Mitesh Patel ** P A A A P

**Appointed to the Committee on 1 May 2013

PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE

MEMBERS 04 July 2013 16 July 2013 19 September 2013 26 October 2013 15 February 2014

Matodzi Ratshimbilani (Chairperson) P P P P P

Mala Somaru P P P P P

Sharon Chauke P A A P P

Mitesh Patel P A A P A

Nkululeko Poya P P P P P

RAILWAY SAFETY COMMITTEE

MEMBERS 10 July 2013 23 August 2013 09 October 2013 08 February 2014

Wahed Rasool (Chairperson)* P P P N/A

May Hermanus* P A P N/A

Mala Somaru P A A P

Thobile Lamati P A A A

Willem Venter P P A P

Chris de Vos* P P P N/A

Jane Barrett P P P P

Nkululeko Poya* P P P P

Natalie Skeepers** (Chairperson) N/A N/A N/A P

Andre Harrison** N/A N/A N/A P

*Term of office expired 31 October 2013
**Appointed to the Committee on 1 December 2013

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

MEMBERS 19 July 2013 19 August 2013 (Special Meeting) 23 October 2013 10 October 2013 17 October 2013 07 February 2014

Thembi Msibi (Chairperson) P P P P P P

Chris de Vos* P P P P P N/A

Jane Barrett* P P P P P N/A

Sharon Chauke* P A A P P N/A

Nkululeko Poya P P P P P P

Natalie Skeepers** N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A P

Andre Harrison** N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A P

Harry Masindi** N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A P

* Term of office expired 31 October 2013
**Appointed to the Committee on 1 December 2013
Legend:  P – Present, A - Apology

INTEGRATED RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board bears the overall governance responsibility for risk management. Management is accountable to the Board 
for the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management process and for integrating risk management 
into the RSR daily operations. 

The RSR has implemented an integrated risk management strategy through which risks and opportunities are 
identified on an ongoing basis. The strategy was implemented to ensure the achievement of the following principal 
risk management objectives:
•	 To provide the Board with assurance that significant risks are identified, assessed and reduced to acceptable 

levels; and
•	 To ensure that risk management practices are embedded into the daily operations of the RSR. 

The risk management strategy is underpinned and guided by the following key principles:
•	 A strong and solid risk culture is a critical pillar of good governance;
•	 Consideration of real and potential risks in decision-making processes;
•	 The acceptance that risk management is mandatory;
•	 Continuous monitoring of the risk exposure as impacted by the changing internal and external 
 Environments;
•	 Acceptance that accountability for risk management cannot be deferred or shifted; and
•	 The importance of maintaining appropriate balance between risk and control.

FRAUD PREVENTION

The responsibility for the prevention of incidents and occurrences of fraud and corruption lies with Management. This 
is managed through the design, implementation and monitoring of a sound system of internal control. In this regard, 
a Fraud and Corruption Prevention Policy and Plan or Strategy has been developed and approved by the Board and 
the implementation thereof is monitored on an ongoing basis. 

INTERNAL AUDIT

The RSR has established an Internal Audit Activity (IAA) in line with the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) 
and the Treasury Regulations. Internal Audit is an independent and objective assurance and consulting activity, 
established to add value and improve RSR operations. It assists the RSR to accomplish its objectives by bringing a 
systematic and disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, internal control 
and governance systems, which must be managed in a manner that ensures:
• The effectiveness and efficiency of operations, investments and projects;
• The safeguarding of RSR assets;
• The reliability and integrity of financial and non-financial information;
• Processes regarding compliance with laws and regulations.
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The IAA reports functionally to the Board Audit and Risk Committee and administratively to the CEO. The IAA report to 
the Committee includes performance against the approved risk based plans, providing the Committee with reasonable 
assurance that the high-risk areas have been reviewed. 

ICT GOVERNANCE

RSR has developed an ICT Governance Framework and the purpose of this framework is to establish principles and 
guidelines in providing leadership, organisational structures and processes that ensure that ICT services sustain and 
extend RSR’s strategies and objectives.  

The objectives of the RSR’s ICT Governance Framework are as follows:
• Ensure compliance with internal and external process requirements;
• Assess and manage ICT risks;
• Define the ICT governance processes, organisation and relationships;
• Communicate management aims, direction and policies;
• Provide guidelines for measuring ICT Governance;
• Provide ICT governance advice.

In 2013/14 RSR appointed the ICT steercom to help drive the strategic programmes of the ICT.  The steercom is 
chaired by an external and independent chairperson.  The committee also has an independent information security 
consultant who advises the committee on security matters.  The committee reviewed the ICT strategy, developed the 
information security policy, and ensured the delivery of EDMS and NIMS permits management module.
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The financial Statements are prepared in a manner required by the Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), 
Public Finance Management Act 1999 and also incorporate responsible disclosures in line with the accounting 
practices of Railway Safety Regulator. 

The RSR’s positive bottom line as shown in Statement of Financial Performance can be attributed to a healthy financial 
control measures, efficient operational expenditure and a higher revenue generated. The main operating cost drivers 
are travelling, professional/outsourced services and staff costs. 

The operating results for the year ended 31 March 2014 reflect a surplus of R2 919 966 which demonstrate an 
enormous increase as compared to the deficit of R3 258 924 reported in the 2012/13 financial year. 

The purchase of capital items contributed to the surplus as they depreciate over some years and the expenditure to 
that effect is minimal per year. CAPEX is accounted for in the Balance Sheet and not in the Income Statement, leaving 
the Income Statement with only operating costs. Below is the graph that illustrates the historic trends of Revenue 
versus Expenditure for the past five years

The RSR does not budget for a surplus nor deficit, the budget variances against the surplus have been addressed in 
note 28 of the Annual Financial Statements. The RSR manages its operations to achieve long-term financial equilibrium 
and it is committed to sustain both the programs and the capital assets.
 
RSR has two main streams of revenue which are:

• Grant from the Department of Transport
• Safety permit fee from rail operators.

The Operating Budget is focused more on resources available and used in the fiscal period presented. The Budget 
does not include certain expenses that are paid out over the long term, such as unused leave days, and certain 
revenue that might not be received within the next fiscal year, such as pledged contribution revenue. 

Total income increased by 41,08% as a result of penalties charged to the operators for contravention of the law, 
new rail operators entering the market and the  increase in annual fee payable as published by the Minister in the 
government gazette. The RSR has issued a total number of 24 (2013: 113) operator permits in the year under review 
with the actual revenue of R57 918 700 (2013: R38 414 123).

Total expenditure increased by 31.8%, this is largely due to increases in staff costs and consulting services needed 
to assist within the core departments of the RSR. There were also costs relating to recruitment such as advertising, 
marketing and promotion, travel and accommodation for new personnel; travelling of inspectors for audits, inspections 
and investigations all over the country, and relocation to new offices in Centurion. 

COMMITMENTS 
The RSR had a total amount of R 307 456 in commitments at 31 March 2014, some goods and services already 
procured but awaiting delivery from the service providers.  

BANK BALANCE
At the end of the financial period the RSR had favourable bank balances of R3 086 371 (2013: R2 291 019).

FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE 
An amount of R92 is disclosed as fruitless and wasteful expenditure incurred during the year. The amount relates to 
interest paid on the late payment of Telkom accounts due to the non delivery of invoices by Telkom employees as 
they went on strike during the year.   

IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE 
No irregular expenditure incurred during the year under review.

OTHER FINANCIAL HEALTH INDICATORS
• Collection of debts within the agreed terms;
• A net current position was not achieved (current liabilities exceeded current assets);
• A net asset position was achieved (total assets exceeded total liabilities );
• A net surplus for the period was achieved;
• The RSR is able to pay its suppliers and creditors as they come due (suppliers paid within 30 days).
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
The RSR has experienced financial challenges during the 2013/14 financial year. The challenges stemmed from 
the reduction of the original budget on permit fees by R5 million which has impacted negatively on RSR Annual 
Performance Plans (APP) and has led to other targets being impossible to achieve without sufficient funds to 
procure the necessary goods and/or services. 

At the beginning of the financial year RSR projected to be within the allocated budget for the year ending 31 March 
2014 but there were critical matters beyond control which arose and had to be taken care of by using the limited 
financial resources allocated. This negative impact is shown below as compared to that of the previous financial 
year:

• LIQUIDITY MANAGEMENT – CURRENT 
 This shows critical liquidity problems because it means RSR’s total current liabilities exceed total current assets and 

that RSR might not be able to pay off its short-term commitments.  On the other hand it gives an indication that RSR 
made commitments with the intension of using the funds allocated for 2014/15 by the National Treasury.    

• DEBT MANAGEMENT 
 There is a huge increase in the collection period with debts aging up to more than 90 days. There were penalties 

charged to operators who were in contravention with the penalty fee regulation (Act No. 16 of 2002 as amended, 
“The Act”). The penalties were charged in November 2013 and 90% of the operators are in dispute and RSR has 
taken the legal route in order to fully collect the outstanding debts.    

 

• ASSET MANAGEMENT 
 There is an improved management of assets. The graph indicates that RSR has been successful in utilizing its 

assets to generate revenues.  

• PROFITABILITY 
 A surplus is as a result of more spending on capital items than on operational and administrative activities.

SUPPLY CHAIN 
MANAGEMENT 

RSR complies with the 
relevant Supply Chain 
legislation and Broad-
based Black Economic 
Empowerment. BEE 
spent is reported 
to the Department 
of Transport on a 
quarterly basis and 
targets in this regard 
have not been met. 

ASSET MANAGEMENT 

RSR recognise the property, plant and equipment in accordance 
with the relevant the Standard of GRAP. The RSR asset management 
system is designed to accommodate the different classes of both 
tangible and intangible assets. Fleet as part of assets, is managed 
centrally by the Fleet Management Unit. 

MATERIALITY FRAMEWORK

In terms of section 55(1)(d)(1) of the PFMA the materiality applied 
during the year was based on 0.05 of the grant allocation. 
Management however applied a qualitative aspect to all errors 
found.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

There were no material facts or circumstances that have occurred 
between year-end and the date on which the financial statements 
were approved.

GOING CONCERN

The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared on a going 
concern basis. The RSR is in the process of implementing the new 
Safety Permit Fee Model which will help in realising the requisite 
revenue enough meet its future obligations in the normal course of 
the business. 

Refer to the Annual Financial Statements for more detail.
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We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2014.

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The Audit Committee consists of the members listed hereunder and should meet at least four times annually.  During 
the year under review five meetings were held and attendance is as reflected below: 

MEMBERS 15 April 2013 17 May 2013 18 July 2013 22 October 2013 30 January 2014

Mmathebe  Moja (Chairperson-Independent) P P P P P

Tshepo  Mofokeng (member-Independent) P P P A A

Thobile Lamati P P P A P

Thembi Msibi A A P P A

Mitesh Patel ** P A A A P

**Appointed to the Committee from May 2012. 
Legend: P: Present   A: Absent

AUDIT COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITY

We report that we have adopted appropriate formal terms of reference in our audit committee charter in line with the 
requirements of Section 51 (1) (a) (ii) of the Public Finance Management Act No.1 of 1999 and Treasury Regulation 
27.1. We further report that we conducted our affairs in compliance with this charter and have discharged our 
responsibilities as contained therein.

THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The system of controls is designed to provide cost effective assurance that assets are safeguarded and that liabilities 
and working capital are efficiently managed. 

In line with the requirements of the PFMA and the King III Report, Internal Audit provides the Audit Committee and 
Management with assurance that the internal controls are appropriate and effective. This is achieved by means of 
the risk management process, as well as the identification of corrective actions and suggested enhancements to the 
controls and processes.

From the various reports of the Internal Auditors, the audit report on the Annual Financial Statements and management 
letter of the Auditor-General, we can report that the system of internal control for the period under review had some 
deficiencies mainly due to challenges of recruitment moratorium imposed at the time the organisation had just 
reviewed its structure to support the revised strategy. 

Effectiveness of Internal Audit Activity
The following internal audit work was completed during the year under review:
Detailed Annual Plan Deliverables 2013/2014:
• Leave Management
• Payroll Management
• Legislative Compliance Review
• Supply Chain Management
• Performance Information
• Revenue Management
• Budget and Expenditure Management
• Follow-up Audit: Auditor General Management letter.
• ICT Audit
• Asset Management 

Although the co-sourced Internal Audit partners were engaged late in the year, the Internal Audit team worked tirelessly 
to cover a good amount of areas highlighted as high risk in the management Risk Register. The internal audit function 
was effective in enhancing management systems of internal controls and risk management. 
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IN-YEAR MANAGEMENT AND MONTHLY/QUARTERLY REPORTS

We are satisfied with the content and quality of the quarterly reports prepared and issued by the Accounting Officer 
of RSR.

EVALUATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Audit Committee has:
• Reviewed and discussed with the Auditor-General and the Accounting Officer the audited annual financial 

statements to be included in the annual report;
• Reviewed the annual report to ensure compliance with treasury framework
• Reviewed the accounting policies and practices;
• Reviewed the Auditor-General’s management letter and management’s response thereto; and
• Reviewed the RSR’s compliance with legal and regulatory provisions.

MATTERS OF CONCERN

During the year under review, activities of RSR were interrupted by investigations that caused uncertainty among staff 
and management. The Ministry ordered a period of moratorium on staff recruitment processes. Subsequent to year 
end the office of the Public Protector requested information on the same matters of investigations that the Board and 
the Ministry was addressing during the year.

The Audit Committee is concerned about the amount of time it will take RSR to meet its full mandate as detailed in 
the strategic plan due to the time lost during the staff recruitment moratorium period. The new staff would need to 
understand the mandate of RSR before they become fully productive in the current financial year, and management 
will spend a lot of time in recruitment processes to fill vacant posts. The root cause of most of the system weaknesses 
reported by the auditors were due to lack of appropriate human resources.

AUDITOR’S REPORT

We have met with the Auditor General to ensure that there are no unresolved issues.
We concur with and accept the Auditor-General’s report on the annual financial statements and are of the opinion that 
the audited annual financial statements should be accepted and read together with the report of the Audit-General.

Mmathebe  Moja
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
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REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTRODUCTION

1. I have audited the financial statements of the Railway Safety Regulator set out on pages 50 to 71 which comprise 
the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2014, the statement of financial performance, statement of changes 
in net assets,and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, as well as the notes, comprising a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these  financial statements 
in accordance with the South African standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) and the 
requirements of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA), and for such internal control 
as the accounting authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of  financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR-GENERAL’S RESPONSIBILITY 

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my 
audit in accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), the general notice 
issued in terms thereof and International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that I comply with ethical 
requirements, and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentationof the financial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

OPINION

6. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Railway 
Safety Regulator as at 31 March 2014 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in 
accordance with GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA.
 

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

7. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I report the following findings on the 
reported performance information against predetermined objectives for selected objectives presented in the annual 
performance report, non-compliance with legislation as well as internal control. The objective of my tests was to 
identify reportable findings as described under each subheading but not to gather evidence to express assurance on 
these matters. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion or conclusion on these matters.

PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

8. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 
information for the following selected objectives presented in the annual performance report of the Railway Safety 
Regulator for the year ended 31 March 2014:

• Objective 1: To facilitate and enforce an effective regulatory framework on page 72 
• Objective 2: To promote alignment of railways in South Africa and SADC on pages 73
• Objective 3: To Maintain sustainable institutional effectiveness on pages 73

9. I evaluated the reported performance information against the overall criteria of usefulness and reliability. 

10. I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine whether it was presented in 
accordance with the National Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether the reported performance was 
consistent with the planned objectives. I further performed tests to determine whether indicators and targets were well 
defined, verifiable, specific, measurable, time bound and relevant, as required by the National Treasury’s Framework 
for managing programme performance information (FMPPI).

11. I assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate 
and complete.

12. I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information for 
the selected objectives.
 
ADDITIONAL MATTER

13. Although I raised no material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information 
for the selected objectives, I draw attention to the following matter:

ACHIEVEMENT OF PLANNED TARGETS

14. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 72 to 73 for information on the achievement of the planned 
targets for the year. 

 COMPLIANCE WITH LEGISLATION

15. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the public entity had complied with applicable legislation 
regarding financial matters, financial management and other related matters. My findings on material non-
compliance with specific matters in key legislation, as set out in the general notice issued in terms of the PAA, are 
as follows:

MATERIAL MISSTATEMENTS IN ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SUBSEQUENTLY CORRECTED

16. The accounting authority submitted financial statements for auditing that were not prepared in all material respects 
in accordance with standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), and supported by full and 
proper records, as required by section 55(1)(a) and (b) of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act no. 1 of 
1999). Material misstatements were subsequently corrected.

INTERNAL CONTROL

17. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, the annual performance report, and 
compliance with legislation. The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies 
that resulted in the findings on non-compliance with legislation included in this report.

FINANCIAL AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT

18. Inadequate review of financial reporting information to ensure complete alignment with standards of Generally 
Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP).
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Statement of financial position as at 31 March 2014

NOTES 2014 2013

R R

ASSETS

Non-current assets  9 645 170  2 775 812 

Property, plant and equipment 2  6 744 003  2 585 413 

Intangible assets 3  76 182  190 399 

Intangible assets: Work-In-Progress 3.1  2 824 985  - 

Current assets  9 366 103  2 706 560 

Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions 4  6 279 732  412 041 

Cash and cash equivalents 5  3 086 371  2 294 519 

TOTAL ASSETS  19 011 273  5 482 372 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Current liabilities  14 509 815  3 900 880 

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 6  14 509 815  3 900 880 

Net Assets  4 501 458  1 581 492 

Accumulated surplus  4 501 458  1 581 492 

TOTAL NET ASSETS AND LIABILITIES  19 011 273  5 482 372 

Statement of financial performance for the year ended 31 March 2014

NOTES 2014 2013

R R

Revenue 8  110 463 040  78 295 755 

Revenue from non-exchange transactions 8.1  46 513 000  39 349 000 

Revenue from exchange transactions 8.2  57 918 700  38 414 123 

Other Income 8.3  270 044  382 895 

Penalties 8.4  5 480 001  - 

Investment income 13  281 295  149 737 

Expenditure  (107 543 074) (81 554 679)

Staff costs 9  (65 060 023) (53 983 711)

Depreciation, amortisation and write-offs 10  (1 601 690)  (1 658 797)

Other operating expenses 11  (22 258 176) (11 492 217)

Administrative expenses 12  (18 623 093) (14 383 215)

Finance costs 14  (92)  (36 739)

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year 26  2 919 966  (3 258 924)
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Statement of change in net assets for the year ended 31 March 2014

Accumulated 
surplus

Total

NOTES

R R

Balance at 1 April 2012  4 840 416  4 840 416 

Deficit for the year  (3 258 924)  (3 258 924)

Balance as at 1 April 2013  1 581 492  1 581 492 

Surplus for the year 2013/14  2 919 966  2 919 966 

Balance at 31 March 2014  4 501 458  4 501 458 

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2014

NOTES 2014 2013

R R

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts

Government grants  46 513 000  39 349 000 

Permit revenue  58 151 583  38 332 350 

Other income received  44 434  252 674 

Interest received  281 295  149 737 
 104 990 312  78 083 761 

Payments

Employees  (64 288 882) (52 966 940)

Suppliers  (37 893 854) (25 844 840)

Interest paid  (92)  (34 581)
 (102 182 828) (78 846 361)

Net cash inflows/(outflows) from operating activities 23.1  2 807 484  (762 600)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Property, plant and equipment purchased  (363 454)  (1 583 824)

Intangible assets purchased  (1 874 985)  (155 715)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  222 807  72 827 

Net cash outflow from investing activities  (2 015 632)  (1 666 712)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Finance lease repayments  -  (496 951)

Net cash outflow from financing activities  -  (496 951)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  791 852  (2 926 263)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  2 294 519  5 220 782 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 23.2  3 086 371  2 294 519 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2014    
     
1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY    
     
The annual financial statements are based upon appropriate policies consistently applied and supported by reason-
able and prudent judgements and estimates. The annual financial statements are prepared under the historical cost 
basis, and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below:     
     
The following are the principal accounting policies of the Railway Safety Regulator which are in all material respect, 
consistent with those applied in the previous financial year, except otherwise stated.    
 
1.1 Basis of Preparation        
The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Recognised Accounting Prac-
tice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with section 55 of the Public Finance Man-
agement Act, (Act No 29 of 1999).  Accounting polices for material transactions, events or conditions not covered 
by the GRAP reporting framework have been developed in accordance with paragraphs 7, 11 and 12 of GRAP 3 
and the hierarchy approved in Directive 5 issued by the Accounting Standards Board.    
 
The annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance 
with historical cost convention, unless specifically stated otherwise.  The principal accounting policies adopted in 
the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.  Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses have 
not been offset except where offsetting is required or permitted by a Standard of GRAP.    
 
The accounting policies are applied consistently with those used to present the previous year’s financial statements 
and there are no changes in accounting policies, unless explicitly stated.  The details of any changes in accounting 
policies are explained in the relevant policy.     
     
1.2 Going Concern Assumption    
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern assumption and will continue in operation for the 
foreseeable future.     
     
1.3.  Budget Information  - GRAP 24    
In preparation of the annual financial statements, paragraphs 4-6 were implemented due to the fact that local and in-
ternational budget reporting standard is effective since the 1st April 2011.  The inclusion of  a reconciliation on budget 
information enhances the usefulness of the financial statements.     
     
1.4 Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates    
In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the amounts presented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and 
the application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Significant judgements include the following: 
    
     
1.4.1 Property, plant and equipment         
In determining the useful life and residual values of each property, plant and equipment, management took into con-
sideration the nature of each asset type and the usage of assets.      
     
1.4.2 Intangible assets         
In determining the useful life of computer software, management assumed that software will have to be upgraded 
every three to five years. The residual value of computer software is regarded as zero due to the fact that computer 
software is not resalable.     
     
Useful life is based on past experience as well as benchmarking with other organisations. The residual value is the 
estimated resale value or market value of an asset at the end of its useful life     
     

1.5 Revenue Recognition    
     
1.5.1 Revenue from non-exchange transactions    
Revenue from non exchange transactions  is recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be 
received and the value thereof can be reliably measured. Revenue from non-exchange transactions is recognised to 
the extent that there is no further obligation arising from the receipt of the grant. Where a grant is subject to conditions 
RSR recognises a liability until the condition is fulfilled and grant is disclosed as deferred income.    
  
1.5.2 Permit fee revenue    
Revenue arising from permit fees, published in the Government Gazette by the Minister of Transport on an annual 
basis is recognised on an accrual basis, when economic benefit is probable.   This is presented as a credit in the 
statement of financial performance, used for organisational operational requirements.    
 
1.5.3 Penalties     
Revenue arising from penalising operators for contravention of the Act {Contravention of the category 2(i)  of the pen-
alty fee regulations (“Penalty Regulations’’) relating to the failure to comply with any other provision of the Act (Act No. 
16 of 2002 as amended, “The Act”), the regulations and the standards that inhibit or prevent the Regulator’s ability to 
perform its mandate}     
     
1.5.4 Other income    
Other revenue earned by the entity is recognised on a time proportion accrual basis.     
 
1.6 Property, Plant and Equipment    
An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when it is probable that future economic bene-
fits associated with it will flow to the entity and the cost of that item can be measured reliably.  Costs include costs 
incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred subsequently 
to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of 
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.    
 
Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. Prop-
erty, plant and equipment is depreciated on a straight line method over the useful life up to its residual value. The 
residual value and the useful life of each asset are based on management’s judgement and reviewed at each 
financial year end.
     
The assets are depreciated on a straight line basis as follows: Years 
Computer Equipment      1.167 - 8  
Furniture & Equipment      5 - 10 
Office Equipment      3.33 - 9  
Motor Vehicle       6 
Capitalised leased asset      5 
Leasehold improvement      5 
     
The new classification/category added:       
Useful life have not been revised, however the following new categories of assets were added to the asset register:  
    
Furniture        5 
Leasehold improvements      5 
     
1.7 Intangible Assets    
An intangible asset is recognised when it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attrib-
utable to the asset will flow to the entity and  when the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.  Expenditure 
on research activities undertaken and cost of minor software and licenses are recognised as an expense in the 
Statement of Financial Performance in the period incurred. Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumu-
lated amortisation and any impairment losses.  Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their 
useful life. The amortisation period for intangible assets is reviewed every year-end.     
 
Amortisation is charged to the Statement of Financial Performance on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful 
lives of intangible assets unless otherwise stated. Amortisation is considered when intangible asset is brought into 
use.     
     
The estimated useful lives are as follows:    Years 
Computer Software      3 - 5 
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1.8 Asset Impairment     
At each reporting date, management reviews the carrying amounts of the tangible, intangible assets as well as trade 
and other receivables  to determine whether there are any indications of impairment. If any such indication exists, the 
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss.     
  
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset 
is reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment loss is immediately recognised as an expense in the Statement of 
Financial Performance. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the recov-
erable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.    
 
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised esti-
mate of its recoverable amount to the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined had no  impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of 
an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, 
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.     
 
1.9 Financial Instruments    
     
INITIAL RECOGNITION     
The entity classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a fi-
nancial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. Financial 
assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position when the entity becomes party 
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.  Financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction 
costs. Financial assets are measured through profit or loss at fair value. The entity’s principal financial assets are 
trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents and trade and other payables.    
 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS     
Cash comprises of cash on hand.  Cash equivalents are investments amounts of cash in the bank subject to insig-
nificant risk of change in value.     
     
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES     
Trade and other receivables are classified as receivables and are subsequently measured at amortised cost less 
provision for doubtful debts.  Write-down of these assets is expensed in profit or loss.    
 
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES     
All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, comprising original debt less principle payments and amorti-
sation.     
     
1.10 Government Grants    
Governments grants are recognised as income over the period necessary to match it with the related costs that 
they are intended to compensate.  The grant is recognised to the extent that there are no further obligations arising 
from the receipt of the grant.     
     
1.11 Employee Benefits    
The cost of short-term employee benefits (those payable within 12 months after the service is provided, such as 
paid vacation leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical aid) are recognised in the year in which 
the service is provided and are not discounted.  The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as 
an expense as the employee provides services that increase their entitlement or, in the case  of non-accumulat-
ing absences, when the absence occur.                                                                          
 
POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS     
The RSR provides defined contribution plan for the benefit of employees.  The plan is generally  funded by pay-
ments from the employees and the entity.  The entity does not provide for post-retirement medical benefits to its 
retirees.     
DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS     
The entity’s funding of the defined contribution plans is charged to staff costs in the Statement of Financial Perfor-
mance in the year to which they relate.     
     
1.12 Accounting for Leases    
Finance lease are recognised as assets and liabilities at the lower of the fair value of the assets and the present 
value of the minimum lease payments at the date of acquisition.  Finance costs represent the difference between 
the total leasing commitments and the fair value of the assets acquired.  Finance costs are charged to profit or loss 
over the term of the lease at interest rates applicable to the lease on the remaining balance of the obligations. 
    

     
Leases for assets under which all the risks and benefits of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are clas-
sified as operating leases.  Operating lease payments are recognised in profit or loss on a straight line basis over 
the term of the relevant lease taking into account any fixed price escalation.     
     
1.13 Related Parties    
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or to exercise significant in-
fluence or joint control over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.  A related party transaction 
is a transfer of resources, services, or  obligation between related parties regardless of whether a price is charged. 
    
1.14 Unauthorised, Irregular and Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure    
Unauthorised expenditure is either an overspending of a vote or a main division within a vote, or an expenditure that 
is not in accordance with the purpose of a vote or a main division     
     
Irregular expenditure means expenditure incurred in contravention of, or not in accordance with a requirement of 
any applicable legislation.      
     
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure that was made in vain and would have been avoided had 
reasonable care been exercised.     
     
1.15  Provisions and Contingent Liabilities    
Management’s judgement is required when recognising and measuring provisions and when measuring contingent lia-
bilities as set out in Notes 7 and 9 respectively.  The probability that an outflow of economic resources will be required 
to settle the obligation must be assessed and a reliable estimate must be made of the amount of the obligation.  
   
     
The RSR is required to recognise provisions for claims arising from a present legal or constructive obligation as a 
result of past events and is probable that this will result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be reasonably 
estimated.     
     
1.16  Comparative Figures    
Comparative figures are restated in the event of a change in accounting policy or prior year period error.  
   
1.17  Events After Reporting Date    
Recognised amounts in the Annual Financial Statements are adjusted to reflect events arising after the reporting 
date that provide evidence of conditions that arose after the reporting date are dealt with by way of a note.  
   
1.18  Presentation Currency    
All amounts have been presented in the currency of South African Rand which is the functional currency of the entity. 
    
1.19  Statements in issue but not yet effective    
At the date of authorisation of these annual financial statements, the following accounting standards of Generally 
Recognised Accounting Principles (GRAP) were in issue, but not yet effective:    
 
Title Reference Number Date Issued Effective date, Commencing on or after 
Segment Reporting GRAP 18 February 2011 Not specified 
Related Party Disclosure GRAP 20 June 2011 Not specified 
Transfer of Functions Between Entities Under Common Control GRAP 105 November 2010 Not specified 
Transfer of Functions Between Entities Not Under Common Control GRAP 106 November 2010 Not specified 
Mergers GRAP 107 November 2010 Not specified 
Service Concession Arrangement: Grantor GRAP 32 August 2013 Not specified 
Statutory Receivables GRAP 108 September 2013 Not specified 
     
Management has assessed standards issued but not yet effective and determined that these standards will not 
have a significant impact on the RSR’s annual financial statements.       
     
The entity has early adopted the following standard, the early adoption was applied retrospectively as if the new 
standard had always been applied:     
     
 - GRAP 108 Statutory Receivables      
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2 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Year ended 31 March 2014  Computer 
Equipment 

 Furniture & 
Fittings 

 Office 
Equipment  

 Buildings 
Leasehold 

Improvements 

 Finance 
Lease 

Equipment  

 Motor 
Vehicle 

 Total 

 R  R  R  R  R  R  R 

Opening net carrying amount:   
1 April 2013

 1 182 495  1 290 843  112 068  1  2  2  2 585 413 

 Cost  4 320 664  2 655 308  785 559  1 163 279  1 507 430  165 239  10 597 479 

Accumulated depreciation  (3 138 169)  (1 364 465)  (673 491)  (1 163 278)  (1 507 428)  (165 237)  (8 012 066)

Additions  996 428  852 243  100 568  3 696 824  -  5 646 063 

Depreciation/Amortisation  (663 513)  (315 738)  (62 186)  (369 683)  (2)  (2)  (1 411 124)

Impairment  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Disposal/Write-off  (55 492)  (6 807)  (14 050)  -  -  -  (76 349)

Disposal/Write-off of asset - cost  (190 123)  (7 359)  (20 222)  (217 704)

Accumulated depreciation on disposal  134 631  552  6 172  141 355 

Net carrying amount:  
31 March 2014

 1 459 918  1 820 541  136 401  3 327 142  -  -  6 744 003 

 Cost  5 126 969  3 500 192  865 905  4 860 103  1 507 430  165 239  16 025 838 

Accumulated depreciation  (3 667 051)  (1 679 651)  (729 504)  (1 532 961)  (1 507 430)  (165 239)  (9 281 835)

Year ended 31 March 2013  Computer 
Equipment 

 Furniture & 
Fittings 

 Office 
Equipment  

 Buildings 
Leasehold 

Improvements 

 Finance 
Lease 

Equipment  

 Motor 
Vehicle 

 Total 

 R  R  R  R  R  R  R 

Opening net carrying amount:   
1 April 2012

 862 170  1 059 379  133 776  1  232 931  21 247  2 309 504 

 Cost  3 389 095  2 173 215  753 501  1 163 279  1 507 430  165 239  9 151 758 

Accumulated depreciation  (2 526 925)  (1 113 836)  (619 725)  (1 163 278)  (1 274 499)  (143 992)  (6 842 254)

Additions  1 063 927  482 093  37 803  -  -  -  1 583 823 

Depreciation  (680 589)  (250 629)  (55 481)  -  (232 929)  (21 245)  (1 240 872)

Impairment  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Disposal/Write-off  (63 013)  -  (4 030)  -  -  -  (67 043)

Disposal/Write-off of asset - cost  (132 358)  (5 745)  (138 103)

Accumulated depreciation on disposal  69 345  1 715  71 060 

Net carrying amount:               
31 March 2013

 1 182 495  1 290 843  112 068  1  2  2  2 585 413 

 Cost  4 320 664  2 655 308  785 559  1 163 279  1 507 430  165 239  10 597 479 

Accumulated depreciation  (3 138 169)  (1 364 465)  (673 491)  (1 163 278)  (1 507 428)  (165 237)  (8 012 066)
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3 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Year ended 31 March 2014

 Computer 
Software 

 R 

Opening net carrying amount: 1 April 2013  190 399 

Cost  2 374 150 

Accumulated amortisation  (2 183 751)

Additions  - 

Amortisation  (114 217)

Write-off  - 

Disposal of asset - cost  - 

Accumulated amortisation on disposal  - 

Net carrying amount: 31 March 2014  76 182 

Cost  2 374 150 

Accumulated amortisation  (2 297 968)

 Year ended 31 March 2013 

 Computer 
Software 

 R 

 Opening net carrying amount: 1 April 2012  385 566 

 Cost  2 218 435 

 Accumulated amortisation  (1 832 869)

Additions  155 715 

Amortisation  (350 882)

Write-off  - 

Disposal of asset - cost  - 

Accumulated amortisation on disposal  - 

Net carrying amount: 31 March 2013  190 399 

Cost  2 374 150 

Accumulated amortisation  (2 183 751)

2014 2013

R R

3.1 WORK IN PROGRESS: INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Documentum (EDMS) System  1 874 985  - 

Functional Specification Document  950 000  - 

Work In Progress: Intangible Assets: (NIMS)  2 824 985  - 

4.  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE AND NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Trade debtors (permit fees)  401 052  324 042 

Trade debtors (penalties)  5 390 001  - 

Prepayments  438 469  31 886 

Other receivables  50 211  39 571 

Accrued Income  -  16 542 

Provision for doubtful debt  -  - 

Impairment  -  - 

 6 279 732  412 041 

Trade debtors ageing

As at the end of the year, the trade debtors ageing was as follows:

Current  186 800  163 993 

0 to 30 days  60 100  54 650 

31 to 60 days  -  62 550 

61 to 90 days  7 000  30 850 

Over 91 days  5 537 153  12 000 

 5 791 053  324 043 

4.1  PROVISION FOR DOUBTFUL DEBTS

No provision for the penalty fees have been provided. This is based on the premise that no new licenses will be issued until the outstanding debt owed by the operators is 
settled. This decision has been communicated to the operators. The operators’ renewal period is staggered and start from June each year. Only after June 2014 will the RSR be 
in a position to assess/review the provision for doubtful debts as the 2013/14 financial year was the implementation of the penalty regime for the first time.

5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balance as at year end  3 081 371  2 291 019 

Petty cash as at year end  5 000  3 500 

 3 086 371  2 294 519 
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6. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
2014

R
2013

R

Trade creditors  2 895 285  530 048 

Accrual for leave pay  2 081 504  2 010 563 

Accrual for 13th cheque (optional)  597 189  636 221 

Accrual for expenses  8 935 838  724 048 

Centurion office configurations  5 815 109  - 

Marketing and Communication  794 090  - 

NIMS - Management fees and analysis  592 008  - 

Legal Fees including settlement  484 868  - 

Operating lease, Municipal services and personnel claims  1 249 763  - 

 14 509 815  3 900 880 

Trade and other payables are normally settled within 30 days terms.

7.   LEASES

Payments recognised as an expense

Minimum lease payments : Office Accommodation  5 623 510  2 759 862 

Minimum lease payments : Printing Solution  412 637  - 

Minimum lease payments : Vehicles  188 235  189 510 

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments

 - Up to 1 year

    ERIS property group  5 670 869  - 

    Redefined properties  -  1 311 729 

    Transnet  properties  42 452  141 251 

    ECSA properties  -  263 180 

    Growth Point properties  102 454  375 665 

    CHM Vuwani: Printing Solution  550 182  - 

    Standard Bank: Vehicle  48 102  188 235 

 - From 2 to 5 years

    ERIS property group  23 841 436  - 

    Transnet  properties  -  23 870 

    CHM Vuwani: Printing Solution  687 728  - 

 30 943 223  2 303 931 

7.1  OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS : OFFICE ACCOMMODATION
The RSR concluded the following operating lease agreements for office space with which the payments are recognised as an expense  on a straight-line basis over the lease 
term.

7.1.1

Centurion offices with ERIS Property Group for a five year period commencing 01/10/2013 ending on 30/09/2018  for R453,307  monthly vat inclusive with an annual price 
escalation clause of 8.5%. 

7.1.2

Cape Town offices with Transnet for a period of 24 months commencing 01/06/2012 ending on 31/05/2014  for R10, 949.7 monthly vat inclusive  with an annual price 
escalation clause of 9%. .

7.1.3

Durban offices with GrowthPoint Properties for office space in Durban for a period of 12 months commencing 01/03/2013 ending on 28/02/2014  for R34,151  monthly vat 
inclusive. Contract was extended by four months until 30 June 2014

7.2 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS : PRINTING SOLUTION
CHM Vuwani (PTY) LTD is providing printing solution to RSR for a period of thirty six months (36) commencing on 1 July 2013  ending 30 June 2016 for R45, 848.52 
monthly vat inclusive with no escalation during this period  

7.3 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS : VEHICLES
Standard Bank (Pty) Ltd is providing vehicles to RSR for a period of thirty (36) months commencing on 10 February 2011 and ending on 13 March 2014 for R17 225.28 
mothly (VAT inclusive).  The contract was extended for three months until 13 June 2014.

2014 2013

R R

8. REVENUE

8.1 REVENUE FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
 Government grant  46 513 000  39 349 000 

8.2 REVENUE FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
Permit issuing fees  57 870 700  38 228 623 

Permit application fees  48 000  185 500 

57 918 700 38 414 123 

8.3 OTHER INCOME
Other  63 780  257 717 

Contributions  -  35 000 

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  206 264  90 178 

270 044 382 895 

8.4 PENALTIES FOR NON COMPLIANCE 
 Penalties 5 480 001  - 

Contravention of the category 2(i)  of the penalty fee regulations (“Penalty Regulations’’) relating to the failure to comply with any other provision of the Act (Act No. 16 of 
2002 as amended, “The Act”), the regulations and the standards that inhibit or prevent the Regulator’s ability to perform its mandate 

9. STAFF COSTS

Salaries  51 822 530  40 545 143 

Employee benefit contributions  5 911 814  4 848 365 

Expenses related to defined benefit plans  4 196 245  3 418 127 

Performance Bonuses  -  1 046 225 

13th Cheque (optional)  1 262 408  1 438 182 

Increase in leave pay provision  70 940  280 548 

Acting Allowances  267 589  194 029 

Leave Payout  187 744  105 817 

 63 719 270  51 876 436 

Non Executive directors’ remuneration  593 004  583 507 

Internship program  396 557  791 922 

Temporary Personnel  351 192  41 634 

Consultants  -  690 213 

 1 340 753  2 107 275 

 65 060 023  53 983 711 
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2014 2013

R R

10. DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION AND WRITE-OFFS

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment  1 411 124  1 240 872 

Amortisation on intangible assets  114 217  350 882 

Write-offs on property plant and equipment  76 349  67 043 

 1 601 690  1 658 797 

 11. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 

Advertising and promotions  7 143 722  836 594 

Professional fees

    Legal Fees  1 822 293  776 380 

    Inspectorate Consultants  2 529 382  1 597 907 

    Other Consulting Fees  7 145 248  3 785 408 

Protective clothing  33 722  5 760 

Motor vehicles -fleet services  188 235  189 510 

Travel and accommodation - local  2 745 585  2 638 737 

Travel and accommodation - overseas  630 504  1 545 552 

Other  19 485  116 369 

Total  22 258 176  11 492 217 

12. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses are made up as follows:

Audit fees (external)  1 285 614  1 015 733 

Bank charges  40 092  45 101 

Cleaning and hygiene services  36 351  62 057 

Computer expenses - repairs  175 378  55 592 

Computer expenses - licences & installation  666 702  718 566 

Electricity and water  1 609 766  729 314 

Office accommodation - operating lease payments  5 694 646  2 762 992 

Telephones and data services  1 989 068  1 393 112 

Insurance  610 975  478 539 

Courier and postage  29 313  126 907 

Printing and stationery  444 022  500 912 

Corporate Printing  2 021 766  237 215 

Equipment rental  458 485  - 

Refreshments  171 144  203 640 

Recruitment costs  151 145  1 140 497 

Staff training  466 464  1 655 594 

Affiliation fees  39 370  252 089 

Employee Wellness  8 829  172 466 

Conferences  2 346 377  1 858 506 

Other administrative costs  377 586  763 383 

Bad debts written off - irrecoverable contribution for Human Factor Conference  211 000 

Total  18 623 093  14 383 215 

 13. INVESTMENT INCOME 
 Finance income comprises of interest received from favourable bank balances. 281 295 149 737 

14. FINANCE COSTS

 Interest portion of the finance lease chargeable monthly at an effective rate of 16% on the outstanding capital balance.  - 34 581 

 Interest on late payments  92  2 157 

92 36 738 

15. INCOME TAX
No provisions for income tax were made for the year ended 31 March 2014 as the Railway Safety Regulator is exempt from paying company tax.

16. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT

The RSR provides a benefit for all its employees through the  Government Employee Pension Fund, membership of the fund is compulsory.
The fund consists of both defined benefit and defined contribution fund.  The fund is regulated by the provisions of the Government Employees Pension Law of 1996.

16.1 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS
The employees of the Railway Safety Regulator are members of a state-managed retirement benefit plan operated by the Government 

Employees Pension Fund (GEPF). The entity is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefit. The only 
obligation for the entity with respect to the retirement plan is to make the specified contribution. 
The RSR does not offer a post-retirement medical aid benefits to its employees.

The total expense recognised in the statement of financial performance of R4,196,245 (2013: R3,418,127)  represents contributions payable

to the plan by the entity at rates specified in the rules of the plan.  There were no amounts due as at year end.

17.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Railway Safety Regulator is a  schedule 3A  public entity in terms of the Public Finance Management Act.  The related party disclosure is required in terms of GRAP 20 
Related Party Disclosures.
The related parties of the RSR consist mainly of government departments under the same control, as well as directors and key management personnel.  Unless otherwise 
disclosed, all transactions with related parties are on an arms length basis at market related prices length basis at market related prices.

During the year, the RSR in the ordinary course of its business, entered into the following transactions:

17.1 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION

Salary
Service 
Bonus

Perfor-
mance 
bonus

 Expense 
Claim Other  Total  2014  Total  2013 

R R R R R R R

N.A. Poya CEO  1 688 133  -  -  16 945  45 701  1 750 779  1 504 146 
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17.2 EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION

Salary
Service 
Bonus

Perfor-
mance 
bonus

 Expense 
Claim Other  Total     2014  Total  2013 

R R R R R R R

M.S. Khosa *
General Manager: Research & Cooperative Govern-
ance

 -  -  -  -  -  -  1 159 271 

M.S. du Plessis
Executive Manager: Operations

 1 056 645  59 597  -  410  154 816  1 271 469  1 162 990 

M.M. Ntlangula**
Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

 -  -  -  -  -  -  1 200 141 

L.P. Rathaba
Executive Manager: Research & Technical Services

 1 342 614  -  -  -  79 591  1 422 205  1 224 017 

S.A. Xulu
Executive Manager: Coporate Services

 923 973  49 801  -  495  173 325  1 147 594  1 030 880 

I. Shai
Executive Manager: Regulations & Governance

 919 855  53 810  -  240  151 003  1 124 908  1 067 946 

T.H. Fumbata
Executive Manager: Investigations

 917 364  50 018  -  10 356  153 471  1 131 209  253 544 

S Maye
Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

 858 417  46 853  -  565  145 791  1 051 626  246 179 

Total  6 018 868  260 079  -  12 066 857 998  7 149 011  7 344 968 

*Due to structural changes the General managers does not form part of the Executive Management Team

** Resigned June 2012

17.3 NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS
 Fee        

Claim 
 Cell phone 

Claim 
 Expense 

Claim  Total 2014  Total  2013 

 R  R  R  R  R 

M.B. Madumise*  42 511  3 500  1 924  47 935  76 698 

C.J. de Vos*  51 395  1 750  10 257  63 402  90 054 

M. A. Hermanus*  25 946  1 750  -  27 696  41 334 

M. V. Ratshimbilani  52 256  3 750  2 585  58 591  58 250 

W.A. Rasool*  37 101  1 750  1 572  40 423  69 496 

T.N. Msibi  57 455  2 750  7 334  67 539  80 938 

K.J. Barrett  55 197  2 750  -  57 947  60 987 

M.M. Patel  17 395  1 750  976  20 121  32 755 

A.B. Harrison  22 006  1 000  1 539  24 545  - 

K.G. Mbonambi  11 850  1 000  -  12 850  - 

T.N. Baloyi  16 928  1 000  28 346  46 274  - 

N.C. Skeepers  25 392  1 000  3 026  29 418  - 

T.H. Masindi  16 928  1 000  -  17 928 

 -  - 

Total 432 360  24 750 57 559  514 669  510 512 

*Old RSR Board - contract ended 31 October 2013

** New RSR Board - appointed 1 November 2013

17.4 External Audit Committee Members - ( Non-Executive Directors)

 Fee       
Claim 

 Cell phone 
Claim 

 Expense 
Claim  Total  Total 

 2014  2013 

R. J. Magoele*  -  12 827 

TM. Mofokeng  19 585  -  2 304  21 889  14 597 

MA. Moja  48 421  -  8 026  56 447  45 571 

Total  68 006  - 10 330  78 336  72 995 

* Resigned March 2013

17.5 Government Departments and Public Entities

NAME OF RELATED PARTY NATURE OF THE TRANSACTIONS  AMOUNT

2014 2013

Department of Transport Government grant received  46 513 000  39 349 000 

Passenger Railway Agency of South Africa Safety permit fees  23 360 000  13 500 000 

Transnet Freight Rail Division Safety permit fees  24 506 000  13 954 660 

Bombela Operating Company Safety permit fees  4 500 000  1 999 460 

18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial instruments are recognised in net surplus or deficit in the year in which they arise. 

Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the market interest rate.  The entity’s exposure to the 
risk of changes in market rates is limited to cash and cash equivalents that have floating interest rates.

Credit risk 

The risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under financial instrument, leading to a financial loss.  The entity is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities 
primarily for trade receivables.  The entity’s maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 March 2014 was R6 279 732 (31 March 2013 was R412,041).

Liquidity risk

The entity manages liquidity risk through proper management of working capital, capital expenditure and actual vs. forecasted cash flows  and its cash management policy.                                                         

Financial assets

The entity’s principle financial assets are accounts receivables and cash and cash equivalents.  At 31 March 2014 the carrying amounts of of cash, accounts receivable and 
accounts payable approximated their fair values due to the short term maturities of theses assets and liabilities.  The net fair value of the assets and liabilities of the RSR are 
stated below:

Assets 2014 2013

Trade and other receivables  6 279 732  412 041 

Cash and cash equivalents  3 086 371  2 294 519 

Liabilities

Trade and other payables  14 509 815  3 900 880 
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19. FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE
2014

R
2013

R

19.1 Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure  92  2 157 

Opening balance  2 157  3 178 

Irregular expenditure - current year  92  2 157 

Irregular expenditure condoned - current  -2 157  (3 178)

Irregular expenditure awaiting condonation  92  2 157 

19.2 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Incident Disciplinary Action or steps taken Amount

Interest and penalties on late payments - prior years No disciplinary action was taken, the expenditure has been written 
off.  The National Treasury has been notified in terms of TR 9.1.2 
as required by the PFMA.

 2 157 

Interest and penalties on late payments for the current and prior year No disciplinary action was taken, the expenditure has been written 
off.  The National Treasury has been notified in terms of TR 9.1.2 
as required by the PFMA.

 92 

20. IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE

20.1 Reconciliation of irregular expenditure
Opening balance  -  1 756 160 

Irregular expenditure - current year  -  - 

Irregular expenditure condoned - current  -  (1 756 160)

Irregular expenditure awaiting condonation  -  - 

20.2 rregular expenditure 
No irregular expenditure incurred in this financial year

21.  UNAUTHORISED EXPENDITURE

21.1 Reconciliation of unauthorised expenditure
Opening balance  -  - 

Unauthorised expenditure - current year  -  2 047 723 

Unauthorised expenditure condoned - current  (2 047 723)

Unauthorised expenditure awaiting condonation  -  - 

21.2 Unauthorised expenditure 
No unauthorised expenditure incurred in this financial year

22.  COMMITMENTS

Other commitments  307 456  805 349 

Capital commitments - NIMS

The development of NIMS has started. Two companies awarded a tender that is E-logics (now resolve) and Faranani. The tender price for the development of this system over 
a three year period is R20.1m 

23. NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT 2014 2013

R R

23.1 Cash utilised in operating activities  2 807 484  (762 600)

Net surplus/ (deficit) for the year  2 919 966  (3 258 924)

Adjustments for:

Other Assets Purchased  (6 232 609)  - 

Depreciation  1 411 124  1 240 872 

Amortisation  114 217  350 882 

Gain on disposal of plant and equipment and other income  (222 807)  (72 827)

Write-offs of assets  76 348  67 042 

Finance charges on finance lease  -  34 581 

 (1 933 761)  (1 638 374)

Movements in working capital  4 741 245  875 774 

Increase/ (decrease) in accounts receivable  (5 867 691)  91 581 

(Decrease) / increase in accounts 
payable

 10 608 936  784 193 

23.2 Cash and cash equivalents

Bank and Cash  3 086 371  2 294 519 

 3 086 371  2 294 519 

24. GOING CONCERN

The going concern basis was adopted in preparing the annual financial statements.  Based on the forecast and available cash resources, the
Board of Directors has reasonable expectation that the entity has resources to continues into the foreseeable future.

25.  EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE
No events after reporting date 

26.  CONTINGENT LIABILITY                                                                             
No contingent liabilities 
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27.  RECONCILIATION OF BUDGET SURPLUS WITH THE SURPLUS IN THE STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL 
PERFOMANCE                                                                                 
Surplus as per Statement of Financial Performance  2 919 966 

Adjustments - Cash surplus 2012/13  1 387 749 

Adjusted surplus for the year  4 307 715 

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation  1 601 690 

Assets purchased  (8 471 047)

Net variance against budget  2 561 642 

Income variance against budget  (1 320 039)

Revenue from safety permits  (918 700)

Interest received  (270 044)

Other income  (131 295)

Expenditure variance against budget  (3 881 681)

Staff costs  1 096 810 

Admin expenses  (901 754)

Other operating expenses  494 350 

Capital expenditure  (4 571 087)

Net surplus/deficit as per budget  (0)

28. RECONCILIATION OF BUDGET SURPLUS WITH THE SURPLUS IN THE STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL 
PERFOMANCE                                                                                 

ORIGINAL-
LY

APPROVED 
BUDGET

ADJUST-
MENTS

REVISED
BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE % VARIANCE

 INCOME

R R R

Grant Income - Operational  41 293 000  -  41 293 000  41 293 000  - 0%

Grant Income - Capex  5 220 000  -  5 220 000  5 220 000  - 0%

Investment Income  150 000  -  150 000  281 295  131 295 88%

Permit Issuing Fees  62 000 000 (5 000 000)  57 000 000  57 918 700  918 700 2%

Penalties  -  5 480 001  5 480 001  5 480 001  - 0%

Other Income  -  -  -  270 044  270 044 0%

Commitments  2012/13  -  805 349  805 349  805 349  - 0%

Surplus 2012/13  -  582 400  582 400  582 400  - 0%

TOTAL 108 663 000  1 867 750  110 530 750 111 850 788  1 320 038 

EXPENDITURE

Staff Costs  70 398 583 (5 000 000)  65 398 583  64 467 019  931 564 1%

Directors Remuneration  578 250  -  578 250  514 669  63 581 11%

Independent Audit Members  180 000  -  180 000  78 336  101 664 56%

Rentals - Office  5 620 000  100 000  5 720 000  5 694 646  25 354 0%

Audit Fees 2012/13  1 020 000  280 000  1 300 000  1 285 614  14 386 1%

Professional Fees  13 178 365 (1 161 273)  12 017 092  11 496 924  520 168 4%

Other Administrative Costs  6 598 240  4 103 191  10 701 431  11 642 925  (941 494) -9%

Other Operating Costs  5 869 562  4 865 871  10 735 433  10 761 252  (25 819) -0%

Capital Expenditure  5 220 000 (1 320 039)  3 899 961  8 471 046  (4 571 086) -117%

TOTAL 108 663 000  1 867 750  110 530 750 114 412 430  (3 881 680) -4%

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)  (0)  0  - (2 561 642)  (2 561 642) 0%

Reasons for variance (above R200 000 and 50%)

DESCRIPTION EXPLANATION

            Item Reason

           Revenue

          - Permit Issuing Fees Permit fee budget is based on class A operators fees only.  The variance is mainly due to Class B operators and the 
application fee charged when applying for a permit - these fees are not included in our budget.

          - Investment Income The grant from DoT was received in April 2013 in full - earned interest.

          - Other Income Proceeds from disposal of assets and sale of tender documents.

          - Commitments  2012/13 Budget Adjustment: Commitments at the end of 2012/13 

          - Cash Surplus 2012/13 Budget Adjustment: Cash rolled from the previous financial 

            Item Reason

           Expenditure 

          - Staff Costs Senior Management position budgeted for (Communication, Strategy) only filled in the first quarter of 2014/15.

          - Independent Audit Members Budgeted for three members but one resigned in March 2013.  The other member did not attend all plannned 
committeees 

          - Professional Fees The saving is due to the fact that some expenses although budgeted, new professional fees have been included under 
operating costs.  This was to ensure consistency in the clarification of expenses.

          - Administrative Costs The over expenditure on this item is due to the settlement agreement (of which no provision was made) as well as the 
increase in rentals of our new premises at Centurion.

          - Capital Expenditure Configuration of the new offices which was not foreseen at the time of procuring the accommodation.
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PERFORMANCE INFORMATION
The 2013/14 financial year marked the mid-term review of the Strategic Plan of the RSR against the backdrop of 
massive railway investment plans by government.  What emerged in the mid-term is that there is sufficient support 
and commitment on the part of the South African government towards the resolution of challenges faced by the 
railway sector.  The current strategic interventions guided the programme for the 2013/14 financial year and these 
interventions were informed by the need to effectively address and respond to events occurring within the rail 
industry.  

THE STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR WERE TO:
• Facilitate and enforce an effective regulatory framework;
• Promote alignment of railways in South Africa and SADC;  and
• Maintain sustainable institutional effectiveness.

A summary of the performance information for the 2013/14 financial year is depicted in the table that follows:

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 1: TO FACILITATE AND ENFORCE AN EFFECTIVE REGULATORY FRAMEWORK

NO BASELINE AS AT 2012/13
KEY PERFORMANCE 
INDICATOR (KPI)

ANNUAL TARGET 
2013/14

ACTUAL 
PERFORMANCE

REASON FOR 
DEVIATION

ACTION PLAN

1.
Number of Standards and 
Notices developed

Standards and Notices
3 Standards developed and 
4 Standards amended

Target not Achieved
The target was not achieved 
due to the reduction in the 
Gazetted annual tariffs for 
Permit Fees

The target is 
budgeted for in the 
2014/15 financial 
year

1 Guidance document Target Achieved

2.
Number of Regulations 
developed

Number of Regulations 4 Regulations developed Target not Achieved

The target was not achieved 
due to the reduction in the 
Gazetted annual tariffs for 
Permit Fees

The target is 
budgeted for in the 
2014/15 financial 
year

3. Number of Permits re-issued
Number of Annual Safety 
Improvement Plans 
(ASIP’s) Reviewed

120 ASIP’s reviewed
Target Achieved

4.
State of Safety Report 
published by September

State of Safety Report 
published

State of Safety Report 
developed

Target Achieved

5. Number of Audits undertaken
Number of Inspections 
conducted

90 Inspections conducted 
Target Achieved

6. Number of Audits undertaken
Number of Safety Audits 
conducted

68 Safety Audits conducted
Target Exceeded
70 Safety Audits 
conducted

2 Additional Safety Audits 
were conducted due to 
requests from Operators 
NATREF & Accellormittal 
Vereeniging

7. Number of Audits undertaken
Number of Investigations 
conducted

20 Investigations completed
Target Exceeded
30 Investigations were 
conducted

10 Additional Investigations 
were conducted 

8.
% of Technology Reviews 
undertaken

85 % of Technology 
Reviews conducted as per 
requests

85 % of Technology 
Reviews conducted as per 
requests

Target Exceeded
92 % of Technology 
Reviews conducted as 
per requests

Additional reviews were 
conducted 

9.
% of Implementation of the 
Strategy to Regulate Maintainer

Strategy to regulate 
Maintainer developed

Strategy to regulate the 
Maintainer developed

Target Achieved

10
No of Position Papers 
developed

Number of Research 
Reports completed

7 Research Reports 
completed

Target Achieved

11.
Number of agreements 
renewed, concluded and 
implemented

Number of Agreements 
implemented

11 Agreements 
implemented

Target Achieved

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 2: TO PROMOTE ALIGNMENT OF RAILWAYS IN SOUTH AFRICA AND SADC

NO. BASELINE AS AT 2012/13
KEY PERFORMANCE 
INDICATOR (KPI)

ANNUAL TARGET 2013/14
ACTUAL 
PERFORMANCE

REASON FOR 
DEVIATION

ACTION PLAN

12.
No of initiatives undertaken to assist 
SADC countries

Number of initiatives to assist 
SADC countries

3 Initiatives undertaken Target Achieved

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 3:  TO MAINTAIN SUSTAINABLE INSTITUTIONAL EFFECTIVENESS

NO. BASELINE AS AT 2012/13
KEY PERFORMANCE 
INDICATOR (KPI)

ANNUAL TARGET 
2013/14

ACTUAL 
PERFORMANCE

REASON FOR DEVIATION ACTION PLAN

13.
% Implementation of the 
performance management 
framework

Compliance to 
the Performance 
Management Framework

Annual Report submitted 
to DoT

Target Achieved

Strategic Plan developed Target Achieved

14.
% compliance with Risk 
Strategy

Compliance to Risk 
Management Strategy

Risk Management Strategy 
implemented and monitored

Target Achieved

15.
% compliance with Audit 
Strategy

Compliance with the 
Internal Audit Strategy

Internal Audit Strategy 
implemented

Target Achieved

Approved Internal Audit 
Charter

Target Achieved 

16.
% implementation of the 
BBBEE Strategy

Implementation of the 
BBBEE Strategy

BBBEE Strategy 
implemented (60 % 
targeted for the BEE)

Target not Achieved

The development of the strategy 
was delayed due to the lack of 
recruitment of a specialised 
human resource skill as a result 
of the moratorium placed on RSR

The target is budgeted 
for in the 2014/15 
financial year

17.
No of initiatives undertaken 
to assist SADC countries

Communication Strategy 
Implemented

1 Customer Care call centre 
established

Target not Achieved
The target was not achieved due 
to the reduction in the Gazetted 
annual tariffs for Permit Fees

The target is budgeted 
for in the 2014/15 
financial year

1 Railway Safety 
Conference planned

Target not Achieved
The target was not achieved due 
to the reduction in the Gazetted 
annual tariffs for Permit Fees

The target is budgeted 
for in the 2014/15 
financial year

18.
% implementation of the ICT 
Strategy

ICT Strategy 
implemented

Developed phase 1 of NIMS Target Achieved
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No. Class A

Access Freight International Limited

AFGRI  Handling and Storage

African Explosives Holdco Limited  T/A African Explosives Limited 
(AEL)

African Rail and Traction Services

AFRISAM

Anglo American Platinum T/A Rustenburg Central Services Ltd

Anglo American Thermal Coal

Anglogold Ashanti - The South Africa Region Metallurgy

Arcelormittal Newcastle

Arcelormittal Vanderbijlpark

Assmang Limited : Iron Ore Beeshoek Mine

Assmang Limited T/A Khumani Iron Ore Mine

Assmang Limited-Manganese Ore-Black Rock

Assmang Manganese: Cato Ridge Works

BHP Billiton Energy Coal SA Ltd T/A Phola Coal Processing Plant

BHP Billiton T/A BECSA Coal Processing (Middelburg Mines)

Bidfreight Port Operations (Proprietary) Limited

Black Mountain Mining P/L

Bombela Operating Co (Pty) Ltd

Bosveld Phosphates

BP Southern Africa T/A BPSA

Cape Point Partnership

Chevron Oil SA (Pty) Ltd

City of Cape Town

City of Tshwane Metropolitan Municipality

City of Umhlathuze Municipality

Delmas Coal (Pty) Ltd

Dorstfontein Coal Mine (Pty) Ltd

Droogvallei Rail Siding Company P/L

Duferco/ Vanchem Vanadium Products (Pty) Ltd

Durban Coal Terminal Co T/A Bulk Connections

Ekurhuleni Metropolitan Municipality

Engen Petroleum Limited - Bethlehem

Engen Petroleum Limited - Bloemfontein

Engen Petroleum Limited - Kroonstad

Engen Petroleum Limited - Langlaagte

Engen Petroleum Limited - Montague Gardens

Engen Refinery

Eskom Generation T/A Majuba Power Station

Eskom Holdings SOC Limited T/A Eskom Generation - Camden Power 
Station

Ethekwini Municipality

Evraz Highveld Steel and Vanadium Corporation Ltd

Evraz Highveld Steel and Vanadium Ltd - Mapochs Mine Division

Exxaro Coal (Pty) Ltd - Inyanda Coal

Exxaro Leeuwpan Coal

Exxaro Resources (Pty) Ltd – Grootegeluk Coal

Exxaro Resources (Pty) Ltd T/A New Clydesdale Coal

Forbes Coal Trading as Manhattans

Forzando Coal Mines (Pty) Ltd

Foskor (Pty) Limited - Phalaborwa

Foskor (Pty) Limited - Richards Bay

Fransrail Cc T/A Franschhoek Valley Wine Tram

Friends of The Rail

Glencore Operations  Coal SA P/L T/A Glencore Operations Coal SA

Grindrod Terminals Richards Bay  (A Division of Grindrod (SA) (Pty) 
Ltd

Harmony Gold Mine

Hotazel Manganese Mines (Pty) Ltd

Impala Platinum Holdings Ltd T/A Implats

Island View Storage Ltd, Durban 

Island View Storage Ltd, Richards Bay

Kangra Coal (Pty) Ltd T/A Savmore Colliery

Karbochem (Pty) Ltd

Lafarge Industries SA

Locomotive, Engines & General Engineering Cc

Mactransco (Pty) Ltd

Mafube Coal Mining (Pty) Ltd

Mashala Resources (Pty) Ltd

Mbombela Local Municipality

Moqhaka Municipality

Msobo Coal P/L

NATREF T/A (National Petroleum Refiners of SA P/L)

NPC - Cimpor (Pty) Ltd 

Omnia Fertilizer (A Division of Omnia Group (Pty) Ltd)

Optimum Coal Holdings P/L T/A Koornfontein Mine P/L

Optimum Coal Mine (Pty) Ltd

Outeniqua Power Van

Palabora Mining Company

Patons Country Narrow Gauge Railway

PetroSA (Petroleum Oil & Gas Corporation of SA P/L)

Pioneer Foods T/A Sasko Grain

PPC Ltd T/A PPC Cement

PRASA Rail

Reefsteamers

Richards Bay Coal Terminal Company Limited

Richards Bay Minerals

Rovos Rail Tours (Pty) Ltd

RRL Grindrod (Pty) Ltd

SA Coal Mine Holdings T/A Voorslag Coal Handling P/L

SA Coal Mining Holdings Ltd T/A SACM Operations (Pty) Ltd

SA Freight Logistics T/A SAFLOG

SABT T/A Durban Bulk Shipping & Rennies Bulk Terminals

SADC  Bulk Management And Logistics (Pty) Ltd

Sandstone Estates

Sappi Southern Africa (Pty) Ltd T/A SAICCOR Mill

SAPPI Southern Africa Limited

Sasol Infrachem Ammonia &  Explosives Operations

Sasol Secunda Rail Operations

Sasol Shared Services, Division of Sasol Group Services P/L

Senwes Ltd

Shanduka Coal (Pty) Ltd

Shell SA Marketing (Pty) Ltd

Sheltam (Pty) Ltd

Sibanye Gold Limited T/A Driefontein Operation

Sishen  Iron Ore Company (Pty) Ltd T/A Kolomela Mine

Sishen Iron Ore Company (Pty) Ltd T/A Sishen Mine (SIOC)

Sishen Iron Ore Company (Pty) Ltd T/A Thabazimbi Iron Ore Mine

Sol Plaatje Municipality

Tongaat Hulett Limited

Total SA (Pty) Ltd -  Nelspruit

Total SA (Pty) Ltd - Ladysmith

Total SA (Pty) Ltd T/A Total Island View Terminal

Total SA (Pty) Ltd. Polokwane

Total South Africa - Waltloo (Pty) Ltd

Trains Planes & Automobiles Cc T/A Atlantic Rail

Transnet Freight Rail, Division of Transnet Ltd

Transnet Ltd T/A Transnet National Ports Authority

Transnet Ltd T/A Transnet Port Terminals

Transnet SOC Ltd T/A Transnet Engineering

Transnet SOC Ltd T/A Transnet Pipelines

Tshipi é Ntle Manganese Mining (Pty) Ltd - Tshipi Borwa Mine

Umfolozi Sugar Planters Ltd T/A UCOSP

Umgeni Steam Railway

United Manganese Of Kalahari (Pty) Ltd T/A UMK

Vopak Terminal Durban P/L

Woestalleen Colliery (Pty) Ltd

No. Class B

A.M. Alberts (Pty) Ltd T/A Progress Milling

Afgri Operations Ltd T/A Afgri Animal Feeds

African Hide Trading (Pty) Ltd

African Oxygen Limited T/A Afrox

African Realty Trust (Pty) Ltd

Allem Brothers (Pty) Ltd

Anglo Welsh Coal Mines 

Aplorox Cc

Arcelormittal Vereeniging

Ash Resources (Pty) Ltd

Assmang Chrome : Machadodorp Works

Astral Operations Ltd T/A Meadow Feeds

Auto Commodities (Pty) Ltd

AVENG Africa Ltd T/A Manufacturing Infraset (Brakpan)

AVENG Trident Steel

Bakara Engineering (Pty) Ltd

Barloworld Logistics Africa (Pty) Limited

Bayfibre Central Timber Cooperative

Benicon Coal (Pty) Ltd

Billiton Aluminium SA Ltd T/A Bayside Aluminium

BMW (SA) (Pty) Ltd

Botswana Ash (Pty) Ltd

Brandywine Valley Investments (Pty) Ltd T/A Uitkomst Colliery 

Breede Valley Municipality (BVM)

Bridge Intermodal (A Division of Bridge Shipping P/L)

Buffalo City Municipality

Columbus Stainless (Pty) Ltd

Consol Glass (Pty) Ltd

Crowe Brothers T/A Fairfield Estate JV 

Crown Chickens (Pty) Ltd T/A Sovereign Foods 

CTC Timber Products (Pty) Ltd

CTE Investments (Pty) Ltd

DCD Rolling Stock (A Division of DCD Group (Pty) Ltd)

DCD Rolling Stock (A Division of DCD Group (Pty) Ltd)

Delta (E.M.D.) (Pty) Ltd

Dept of Defence T/A DOD Logistics Division

Distell (Pty) Ltd - Springs

Distell Wadeville

Easigas (Pty) Ltd

Eastern Chrome Mines

Elandsfontein Colliery (Pty) Ltd

Emnambithi/Ladysmith Municipality

Engen Petroleum Limited - Engen Witbank

Engen Petroleum Limited - Klerksdorp

Engen Petroleum Limited - Mokopane

Engen Petroleum Ltd - Rustenburg

Engen Petroleum Ltd T/A Zenex Blend Plant

Ensign Shipping & Logistics (Pty) Ltd

Epol A Division of Rainbow Farms (Pty) Ltd - Berlin

Epol A Division of Rainbow Farms (Pty) Ltd - Pietermaritzburg

Epol A Division of Rainbow Farms (Pty) Ltd - PTA West

Epol A Division Of Rainbow Farms (Pty) Ltd - Worcester

Ethekwini Cold Stores

Everite Building Products (Pty) Ltd

Exxaro North Block Complex T/A Exxaro Mpumalanga Glisa Colliery

Feltex Holdings P/L T/A  Brenner Mills P/L

Ferrometals (A Division Of Samancor Chrome Ltd (Kermas)

Flamite (Pty) Limited
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Foodcorp Consumer Brands Milling Division

Ford Motor Company Of Southern Africa (Manufacturing) (Pty) Ltd

FPT Group P/L  (Durban )

FPT Group P/L - (PE)

FPT Group P/L (Cape Town)

General Motors SA P/L T/A GMSA

George Municipality

Gledhow Sugar Co P/L

Glen Douglas Dolomite Mine (Pty) Ltd

Glencore Operations Alloys Lydenburg Works

Glencore Operations South Africa (Pty) Ltd Rustenburg Works

Glencore Operations South Africa (Pty) Ltd Wonderkop Smelter

Golfview Mining (Pty) Ltd

Gordonia Mills (Pty) Ltd

Greystones Enterprises 

Grindrod Intermodal

Grindrod SA (Pty) Ltd T/A Grindrod Terminals (Maydon Wharf)

GWK Limited

Heartland Leasing (Pty) Ltd

Hernic Ferrochrome P/L

Hulamin Limited

Idwala Industrial Holdings (Pty) Ltd

Illovo Sugar Ltd SA Ltd - Noodsberg

Impala Platinum Refineries

Industrial Locomotive Services Cc

Jindal Mining

JLR Services And Warehousing Cc

Kaap Agri (Pty) Ltd

Keaton Energy T/A Vaalkrantz Colliery

Kelvin Power (Pty) Ltd

KLK Petroleum Verspreiders (EDMS) BPK

Kynoch Fertilizer (A Division of Farmisco (Pty) Ltd

Lafarge Industries South Africa

Lanxess CISA (Pty) Ltd

Lanxess Merebank

Lennings Rail Services (Pty) Ltd

Lennings Rail Services (Pty) Ltd

Lesotho Milling Co P/L

Lime Distributors (Pty) Ltd

Lion Match Products (Pty) Ltd

Lukhanji Municipality

Lyttelton Dolomite (Pty) Ltd

Macdonald’s Transport Upington T/A Macdonald’s Transport & 
Warehousing

Macsteel Service Centers SA P/L

Manganese Metal Company (Pty) Ltd

Masonite Africa Limited

McPhail Distributors (Pty) Ltd

MGK Operating Company T/A Prodsure

Middelburg Ferrochrome (MFC) (A Business Unit of Samancor 
Chrome Ltd)

Mister Bread Milling P/L

Moorreesburgse Koringboere (Pty) Ltd

Mpact Paper Ltd - Felixton Mill

MSC Depots

Msunduzi Municipality 

Naledi Rail Engineering

National Department of Public Works

NCT Durban Woodchips (Pty) Ltd

Nelson Mandela Bay Municipality

Newcastle Municipality

Nissan SA (Pty) Ltd

Nitrophoska (Pty) Ltd

Nkomazi Muncipality

Northern Coal (Pty) Ltd

NTK Limpopo Agric (Pty) Ltd

NWK Limited

Nzenga Investments P/L

Omnia Group (Pty) Ltd T/A Protea Chemicals Cape

OMV Crushers

Otgcterminals (Pty) Ltd

Overberg Agri Bedrywe P/L

OVK Bedryf Beperk

Paramount Mills (Pty) Ltd

Plasser South Africa (Pty) Ltd

Premier Foods  Limited

Pretoria Metal Pressing (A Division of Denel SOC Ltd)

Profile Feeds P/L

Protank (Pty) Ltd T/A Indian Ocean Terminals

Puregas (Pty) Ltd

Racec Rail (Pty) Limited

Reatile Timrite T/A Reatile Timrite Mine Support Products

Rheinmetall Denel Munition (Pty) Ltd

Rhino Minerals P/L T/A Rhino Andalusite Mine

RRL Grindrod Locomotives P/L

SA Bulk Commodity Trading And Storage Services (Pty) Ltd

SA Container Depot Freight - City Deep

SA Container Depot Freight - Durban

SA Feed Phosphates (Pty) Ltd

Safripol (Pty) Ltd

Saint-Gobain Construction Products SA (Pty) Ltd

Saint-Gobain Gyproc SA (Pty) Ltd T/A Gyproc

Samancor Tubatse Chrome

Samancor Western Chrome Mines T/A Samancor Ltd

Samquarz (Pty) Ltd

SATI Container Services (Pty) Ltd - Cape Town

SATI Container Services Jhb (Pty) Ltd

SCAW South Africa (Pty) Ltd

Seawind Investments 15 (Pty) Ltd

Senmin International (Pty) Ltd

Sentraal Suid Co-Operative Ltd - Swellendam

Shell & BP SA Petroleum Refineries (Pty) Ltd - SAPREF

Shincel (Pty) Ltd

Siyazi Technology (Pty) Ltd

South African Breweries - Prospecton

South African Breweries : Ibhayi Brewery

South African Breweries Maltings - Alrode

South African Breweries: Newlands Brewery

Sturrock & Robson Industries T/A Martin And Robson

Suidwes Landbou (Edms) BPK

Sumo Coal (Pty) Limited

The New Reclamation Group P/L

The South African Breweries  Limited : Rosslyn

The South African Breweries Limited : Nelspruit

The South African Breweries Maltings

The South African Breweries: Bloemfontein

The South African Breweries: Kimberley

The South African Breweries: Polokwane

Thornhill Estates (Pty) Ltd

Tiger Brands Ltd T/A Tiger Milling Pietermaritzburg

Tiger Brands Milling Division Randfontein Mill

Tiger Brands Pasta (Pty) Ltd T/A Tiger Brands Culinary Division - 
Pasta Unit Isando

Tiger Consumer Brands Ltd T/A Tiger Milling Hennenman Mill

Tiger Consumer Brands Ltd T/A Tiger Milling Western Cape

Tongaat Hulett Starch (Pty) Ltd (Bellville Mill)

Tongaat Hulett Starch (Pty) Ltd (Germiston Mill)

Total Sa (Pty) Ltd Bethlehem

Total SA (Pty) Ltd T/A Total Ohrigstad

Totalgaz Southern Africa (Pty) Ltd - Chamdor Depot

Totalgaz Southern Africa (Pty) Ltd - Kroonstad Depot

Totalgaz Southern Africa (Pty) Ltd - Polokwane

Transalloys (Pty) Ltd

Tronox Mineral Sands Pty Ltd T/A Tronox Namakwa Sands - (Mineral 
Separation Plant)

Tronox Mineral Sands Pty Ltd T/A Tronox Namakwa Sands - (Smelter)

TSB Sugar RSA Limited

TWK Agriculture Limited

Tzaneng Treated Timbers (Proprietary) Limited

Umtshezi Local Municipality

Unilever South Africa  P/L

Union Carriage & Wagon (Pty) Ltd T/A UCW

Validtrade 2013 Cc

Veekos (Pty) Ltd Now Feedmaster

VKB Landbou Ltd

Voestalpine VAE SA P/L

Voestalpine VAE SA P/L

Wictra Holdings P/L

Witkop Fluospar Mine (Pty) Ltd

Xstrata-Merafe Venture Boshoek Works

Yeastpro

Zululand Anthracite Colliery 

NO. CROSSBORDER (CLASS A OPERATORS)

Botswana Railways

Mozambique Ports & Railways T/A CFM

Swaziland Railways
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